
 
 

  
 

  
       

 
  

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 

 
 

 
   

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

    
  

  
    

   
 

 
     

    

  
  

   
   

  

 
   

 
 

   

  

   
   

  
 

   
 

STATE OF NEVADA 
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada  89509 
Phone (775) 825-5535 * Fax (775) 507-4102 

Email: nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov * Website: http://funeral.nv.gov/ 

AGENDA AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

Wednesday, February 14, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. 
Video Conference and Teleconference 

Via Zoom Video Conference 

Zoom Meetings 
at https://zoom.us/ 

Meeting ID: 890 7638 4097 
Passcode: 776884 

Via Teleconference: 

1-669-900-6833 
Meeting ID: 890 7638 4097 

Passcode: 776884 

Physical Location 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 

Reno, Nevada 

Please Note: The Board may: 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate 
persons appearing before the Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) 
combine items for consideration by the public body; and 3) pull or remove items from the 
agenda at any time.  The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, 
alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of a person. (NRS 
241.030) 

Public comments are welcomed by the Board, but at the discretion of the Chair, may be limited 
to three (3) minutes per person. A public comment time will be available before any action items 
are heard by the public body and then once again prior to adjournment of the meeting. The 
Chair may allow additional time to be given a speaker as time allows and in his/her sole 
discretion. Once all items on the agenda are completed the meeting will adjourn.  Prior to the 
commencement and conclusions of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may 
affect the due process rights of an individual the board may refuse to consider public comment. 
NOTE:  Public comment may be provided prior to the meeting via email to 
nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or table. 

1. Call to order, roll call, establish quorum. 

2. Public comment 

Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the 
matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may 
be taken. (NRS 241.020) 

3. Consent Agenda (For Possible Action) 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
http://funeral.nv.gov/
https://zoom.us/
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


 
 

 

   
   

 
  

   
 

 
   

     
 

 
     

    
  

 
     

    
   

 
 

      
  

 
 

    
      
 

 
     

    
 

 
     

     
 

 
     

    
 

 
    

 
 

    
  

 
      

  
 

     
  

 
 

    
   

The consent agenda items contain matters of routine acceptance.  The Board members may 
approve the consent agenda as a whole or individually at their discretion. 

A. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding review and approval of 
minutes of the Board meeting on November 15, 2023. (For possible action) 

B. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding previously issued 
temporary establishment permit, direct cremation facility permit, crematory license 
applications and request for approval of new managing funeral directors. (For 
possible action.) 

1) Establishment Permit for Beverly’s Memorial Chapel, EST140, located at 71 N. 
Pecos Road, Suite 113 in Las Vegas.  Raymond Giddens, Jr., FD923, as 
Managing Funeral Director. Temporary approval effective December 20, 2023. 

2) Establishment Permit for Gateway to the Valley, LLC, DBA Camino Al Ceilo 
Funeral Chapel, EST141, located at 2041 W. Bonanza Road in Las Vegas. 
Kristopher Wilks, FD919, Managing Funeral Director.  Temporary approval 
effective January 23, 2024. 

3) Crematory License for County Funeral Services, LLC, CRE118, located at 1961 
Whitney Mesa Drive in Henderson.  Temporary approval effective January 25, 
2024. 

4) Managing Funeral Director Request for Carlen Thomas, FD861 – Cremation 
Society of Nevada – Capitol City, EST124. Temporary approval effective 
January 17, 2023. 

5) Managing Funeral Director Request for Kenneth Bowman, FD806 – Cremation 
Society of Nevada – Affinity, EST123. Temporary approval effective January 1, 
2024. 

6) Managing Funeral Director Request for Kenneth Bowman, FD806 – Cremation 
Society of Nevada – John Sparks, EST125.  Temporary approval effective 
January 1, 2024. 

7) Managing Funeral Director Request for Kenneth Bowman, FD806 – Cremation 
Society of Nevada – Northern Nevada, EST126.  Temporary approval effective 
January 1, 2024. 

8) Managing Funeral Director Request for Christopher Walters, FD64 – Desert 
Memorial, EST133.  Temporary approval effective December 7, 2023. 

9) Managing Funeral Director Request for Scott Shade, FD1014 – Desert Memorial, 
EST133.  Temporary approval effective January 9, 2024. 

10) Managing Funeral Director Request for Chris Grant, FD920 – Kraft Sussman, 
EST130.  Temporary approval effective January 17, 2024. 

11) Managing Funeral Director Request for Raymond Giddens, Jr., FD923 – La 
Eternidad Funeral Home, EST134.  Temporary approval effective December 29, 
2024. 

12) Managing Funeral Director Request for Christopher Walters, FD64 – Sunrise 
Cremation, EST101L.  Temporary approval effective December 7, 2023. 

2 

2/7/2024 



 
 

 

 
    

  
 

      
    

 
     

  
 

 
    

    
 

 
    

      
 

      
   

 
   

    
 

  
     

    
 

  
  

    
   

  
    

 
 

    
 

 
    

 
        

 
   

  
 

   
  
  

 
  

   
   

  

13) Managing Funeral Director Request for Scott Shade, FD1014 – Sunrise 
Cremation, DC101L.  Temporary approval effective January 9, 2024. 

14) Managing Funeral Director Request for Chris Grant, FD920 – Vegas Valley 
Cremation, DC98L. Temporary approval effective January 17, 2024. 

15) Managing Funeral Director Request for Carlen Thomas, FD861 – Walton’s 
Funerals & Cremations, EST117.  Temporary approval effective January 17, 
2024. 

16) Managing Funeral Director Request for Carlen Thomas, FD861 – Walton’s 
Funerals & Cremations – Chapel of the Valley, EST118.  Temporary approval 
effective January 17, 2024. 

17) Managing Funeral Director Request for Blake Howe, FD622 – Walton’s Funerals 
& Cremations – Sparks, EST122.  Temporary approval effective January 1, 2024. 

18) Managing Funeral Director Request for Margarita Rojas, FD946 – Tulip 
Cremations, DC100L.  Temporary approval effective January 22, 2024. 

4. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding renewal of 
embalmer license EMB905R held by Gregory Marr. (For possible action.) 

5. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding continuing 
education approval for National Institute of Funeral Services, “Ethics in the 
Funeral Worlds.” Requesting approval for two (2) CEUs. (For possible action.) 

6. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding continuing 
education approval for The International Conference of Funeral Service 
Examining Boards, 120th Annual Meeting and Board/Administrator Training, 
February 27-29, 2024. Requesting approval for six (6) hours for Board Member 
Training, two and a half (2.5) hours for Funeral Services Administrators Forum, 
and eleven (11) CEU hours for the remainder of the sessions. (For possible 
action.) 

7. Financial Reports (For information only.) 

8. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding licensing software 
contract with Thentia Cloud. (For possible action,) 

9. Report from Executive Director, Stephanie Bryant McGee (For information only.) 

10. Discussion regarding future agenda items and future meeting dates (For
possible action.) 

Wednesday, May 15, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, August 14, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, November 13, at 9 a.m. 

11. Public comment 

Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the 
matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may 
be taken.  (NRS 241.020) 

3 

2/7/2024 



 
 

 

 

   
 

    
    

   
       

   
 

    
    

   
   

 
 

    
     

     
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  

  

  
 

 

 

12. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

Anyone desiring additional information, including meeting materials, may contact Stephanie 
Bryant McGee at 775-825-5535. Meeting materials are also available for download from the 
Board website at http://funeral.nv.gov or can be picked up at the following location: 3740 
Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, NV 89509. NOTE: If picking up materials, please call the 
office to schedule a time for pick-up. 

The Board is pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are 
disabled and wish to attend the meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are 
necessary, please notify Stephanie Bryant McGee at 775-825-5535, no later than 48 hours prior 
to the meeting.  Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be 
guaranteed. 

This agenda has been sent to all members of the Board and other interested people who have 
requested an agenda from the Board. People who wish to continue to receive an agenda and 
notice of meetings must request so in writing every six months. 

THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PROPERLY NOTICED AND POSTED 
IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS: 

Funeral Board Office 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 

Reno, NV 89509 

Funeral Board Website 
https://funeral.nv.gov/Board/Meeting 

s/Meetings/ 
Nevada Public Notice Website 

https://notice.nv.gov/ 

4 

2/7/2024 

http://funeral.nv.gov/
https://funeral.nv.gov/Board/Meetings/Meetings/
https://funeral.nv.gov/Board/Meetings/Meetings/
https://notice.nv.gov/


 
 

 
  

      

 

 
 

 

 
  

  
 

 

   
 

 

 
  

 

 
 

  
   

  
 

  
   

   
 

 

 

  

   

STATE OF NEVADA 
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada  89509 
Phone (775) 825-5535 * Fax (775) 507-4102 

Email: nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov * Website: http://funeral.nv.gov/ 

DRAFT MINUTES 

Wednesday, November 15, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. 
Video Conference and Teleconference 

Via Zoom Video Conference 

Zoom Meetings 
at https://zoom.us/ 

Meeting ID: 253 977 5871 // Passcode: 
668556 

Via Teleconference: 

1-669-900-6833 
Meeting ID: 253 977 5871 // Passcode: 

668556 

Physical Location 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, Nevada 

1. Call to order, roll call, establish quorum. 

Chairman Sharp called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  Roll call was taken and confirmed 
that a quorum was present. 

Board Members Present Board Staff Present 
Dr. Randy Sharp, Chairman Stephanie Bryant McGee, Executive Director 
Kim Kandaras, Treasurer Wayne Fazzino, Investigator 
Laura Sussman, Secretary 
Dr. Raymond Giddens Board Counsel Present 
Dr. Donald Edward Chaney Matt Feeley, Deputy Attorney General 
Celena DiLullo Rosalie Bordelove, Chief Deputy Attorney General 
Jeff Long 

2. Public comment 
Chairman Sharp opened the floor to public comment.  There were no comments. 

3. Consent Agenda (For Possible Action) 

Chairman Sharp called for approval of items on the consent agenda, as follows: 

A. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding review and approval of 
minutes of the Board meeting on August 16, 2023. (For possible action) 

B. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding previously issued 
temporary establishment permit, direct cremation facility permit, crematory license 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
http://funeral.nv.gov/
https://zoom.us/


 
 

 

     
 

 
      

    
  

 
    

  
   

 
   

   
  

 
      

    
 

 
      

    
 

  
  

 
    

    
 

  
 

 
    

    
   

 
    

      
       

 
    

  
 

  
     

   
  

 
   

      
     

 
  

  
 

applications and request for approval of new managing funeral directors. (For 
possible action.) 

1) Crematory License for Green Farewells, LLC, CRE117, located at 3065 N. 
Rancho Drive, Suite 176, Las Vegas, Alexis McCurdy and Martin McCurdy as 
Managing Partners; Temporary approval effective September 20, 2023. 

2) Direct Cremation Facility Permit for Green Farewells, LLC, DC102L, located at 
3065 N. Rancho Drive, Suite 176, Las Vegas, with Lennette Smith FD893 as 
Managing Funeral Director; Temporary approval effective September 20, 2023. 

3) Establishment Permit for Giddens Memorial Chapel, Inc., EST139, located at 
2737 N. Lamb Blvd, Las Vegas with Kyle Giddens FD864 as Managing Funeral 
Director; Temporary approval effective September 20, 2023. 

4) Managing Funeral Director Request for Nadia Sandoval FD1007 – Eastside 
Memorial Park Funerals & Cremations EST114.  Temporary approval effective 
August 1, 2023. 

5) Managing Funeral Director Request for Judy Cannon FD1006 – National 
Cremation Society DC87L. Temporary approval effective August 20, 2023. 

Action: Laura Sussman made the motion, seconded by Randy Sharp, to approve all items on 
the Consent Agenda.  The motion passed unanimously. 

4. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding funeral director
license application for Gregory Marr. (For possible action.) 

Stephanie McGee informed the Board that Mr. Marr withdrew his application and that no 
further action was needed on this item. 

5. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding consent decree for
case number FB23-11 regarding Neptune Society – Las Vegas (DC64L) and
Cheryl Lynn Jones (FD986), Managing Funeral Director. (For possible action.) 

Matt Feeley, Deputy Attorney General, presented the proposed consent decree to the Board. 
Celena DiLullo recused herself from this matter, as the entity at issue is owned by the same 
parent company. Ms. McGee noted that the discipline imposed is similar to previous cases. 

Action: Laura Sussman made the motion, seconded by Randy Sharp, to approve the 
proposed consent decree.  The motion passed unanimously. 

6. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding continuing 
education approval for Jenna Dumas and Monica Myles of the Nevada Donor 
Network, “Giving Hope and Life to Others.” Requesting approval for one (1) 
CEU. (For possible action.) 

Stephanie McGee stated that she reviewed the course materials and that the course meets all 
technical requirements for approval.  Monica Myles presented an overview of the course. She 
stated that the course will be offered as requested by funeral homes or others. 

Action: Jeff Long made a motion, seconded by Kim Kandaras, to approve the continuing 
education course as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

2 

2/7/2024 



 
 

 

  
    

  
 

   
     

  
     

   
 

    
  

 
  

   
 

 
 

  
 

     
 

  
 

    
 

 
 

    
 

    
 

  
   

   
  

 
  

   
 

   
 

   
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

  
   

   
 

  

7. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding continuing 
education approval for Nevada Donor Network, “Tissue Recoveries & Clinical 
Applications.” Requesting two (2) hours of CEU. (For possible action.) 

Stephanie McGee stated that she reviewed the course materials and that the course meets all 
technical requirements for approval.  Monica Myles presented an overview of the course and 
explained that this is a new course intended to cover a topic commonly requested by the 
funeral industry. She stated that the course will be offered as requested by funeral homes or 
others. 

Action: Randy Sharp made a motion, seconded by Raymond Giddens, to approve the 
continuing education course as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

8. Regulation Workshop – Workshop to solicit public comment on proposed 
amendments Nevada Administrative Code Chapter 451. 

The proposed regulation addresses the following general topics: 

Adding “dissolving” and “reducing” in addition to the existing language to NAC 451.008 
to accommodate for alkaline hydrolysis and natural organic reduction, during which 
processes a container is dissolved or reduced rather than incinerated. 

Adding “vessel” and “removing remains from the vessel” to the existing language to 
NAC 451.009 to accommodate for alkaline hydrolysis and natural organic reduction, 
which use the term vessel rather than chamber. Chamber is used in reference to 
cremation through incineration. 

Removing obsolete or duplicative provisions regarding embalming requirements and 
burial transit permits to reflect current practices. 

Adding provision to clarify how long records must be maintained. 

Stephanie McGee presented the proposed regulation change.  Laura Sussman suggested that 
the work “casket” be changed to “sound container” or to “casket and/or sound container.” 
Ms. McGee explained that all comments would be considered.  Ultimately, the wording will be 
adjusted by the Legislative Counsel Bureau.  There were no other comments on the regulation. 

9. Regulation Workshop – Workshop to solicit public comment on proposed 
amendments Nevada Administrative Code Chapter 642. 

The proposed regulation addresses the following general topics: 

Adding provisions for filing a report of signed agreements for funeral services; a due 
date for filing the report and paying the regulatory fee required by NRS 642.0696; and 
providing additional information for verification. 

Removing obsolete or duplicative provisions regarding practice before the Board, 
including taking of an oath, consideration of motions, order of presentation, and 
rehearing. 

Stephanie McGee presented the proposed regulation change.  Ms. McGee presented 
statistics regarding the filing of reports and collection of fees over the past 12 months, stating 
that only 50% file by the 15th, and about 90% by the 25th. Kim Kandaras suggested that the 
report due date be the end of the month following the reporting month.  There were no further 
comments on the regulations. 

3 

2/7/2024 



 
 

 

 
  

  
 

 
    

   
 

       
   

 
   

 
  

 
 

        
 

   
   

 
 
      

  
 

   
 

   
 

   
  

 
 

   
  
   

 
  

 
 

  
  

    
 

  
  

 
 

10. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding the FY22/FY23 
Financial Audit Report prepared by Christiansen Accounting Network (For 
possible action.) 

Connie Christiansen presented the FY22 and FY23 audit report, management letter, and 
representation letter to the Board. 

Action: Celena DiLullo made a motion, seconded by Raymond Giddens, to approve the audit 
report as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

11. Financial Reports (For Information Only) 

Stephanie McGee presented the financial statements for FY23 and year-to-date FY24, 
including the regulatory fee report. 

12. Report from Executive Director, Stephanie Bryant McGee (For information only.) 

Stephanie McGee presented some highlights and updates to her written report. She reported 
that a new director had been appointed to the Department of Business & Industry. Ms. 
McGee described the upgrade to the State’s electronic death registry system and the delays 
that were occurring.  Raymond Giddens asked if the State could provide additional training 
and resources to the funeral industry. Ms. McGee explained that she was meeting with the 
vital record team biweekly and would ask for additional resources. 

Ms. McGee thanked the Board members for their service and pointed out the importance of 
the Board’s role in regulations in light of the situation in Pemrose, Colorado.  With that 
situation in the media and movies like “The Burial,” the office receives increased complaints 
and inquiries. 

13. Discussion regarding future agenda items and future meeting dates (For
possible action.) 

Wednesday, February 14, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, May 15, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, August 14, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, November 13, at 9 a.m. 

Chairman Sharp asked that Board members check their calendars and inform Stephanie 
McGee if any of the dates do not work. 

14. Public comment 
Chairman Sharp opened the floor to public comment.  There were no comments. 

15. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

Action: Donald Chaney made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Jeff Long.  The 
motion passed unanimously. 

4 

2/7/2024 



Owner is Beverly's Memorial Chapel LLC 



















 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
                
 

                

 
                

From: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
To: Levon Davis 
Cc: Dr Levon Davis; Dr Giddons 
Subject: RE: Application for Funeral Establishment Permit 
Date: Friday, October 13, 2023 9:46:05 AM 
Attachments: Establishment Inspection Checklist.pdf 

Dr. Davis and Latrina— 

Thank you for submitting your application.  You were certainly working late last night.  I will review 
the application and let you know if anything else is needed. Please allow me a few days for review 
and processing, including running background checks.  Once I have completed the initial review, I will 
let you know if additional information is needed. At that point, we can schedule the initial inspection 
required for the license. 

For your reference, I have attached the initial inspection checklist.  This form (in electronic format) 
will be used by the Board’s inspector to ensure that the facility is in compliance with Nevada law and 
meets the requirements for a license. 

In the meantime, if you have any questions for me, please contact me. 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV  89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

From: Levon Davis <pastordavis@blessedfaithcogic.org> 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2023 10:07 PM 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board <nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov> 
Cc: Dr Levon Davis <drdavis773@sbcglobal.net>; Dr Giddons <rayjr@giddensmc.com> 
Subject: Application for Funeral Establishment Permit 

Greeting,
Attachment available until Nov 11, 2023 

Enclosed is our application for a Funeral Establishment Permit. We have also inclosed 
payment for said permit. If there is anything else needed or anything we may have missed please 
feel free to give us a call or notify by email. 

Thank you so much for your consideration. 

mailto:rayjr@giddensmc.com
mailto:drdavis773@sbcglobal.net
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
mailto:pastordavis@blessedfaithcogic.org
https://funeral.nv.gov


 
 
 
                
                
 
                
                
 
 

Dr Levon Davis 
Latrina Davis 

916-868-9992 
916-583-4895 

Click to Download 
Application Funeral Establishment Permit.pdf 

27 MB 





FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

AUTHORITY 

In accordance with NRS 642.067, NRS 642.365 and NRS 642.435, the Nevada Board of Funeral and 

Cemetery services has authority to inspect any premises where funeral directing is conducted or 

embalming practiced, and is required to make unannounced inspections of each establishment issued 

a permit by the Board. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Name under which the location conducts business: BeverlyÕs Memorial Chapel 

Permit #: Initial Inspection 

Physical address: 71 North Pecos Road, Suite 113, Las 

Vegas, Nevada 89101 

Mailing address: 71 North Pecos Road, Suite 113, Las 

Vegas, Nevada 89101 

Phone number: 725-251-3495 

Owner of location: BeverlyÕs Memorial Chapel LLC 

Type of ownership: LLC 

Name of funeral director approved to manage this Raymond Louis Giddens, Jr. FD923 

establishment: 

Does the establishment have an on-site crematory? No 

Where are bodies from location cremated? La Paloma Cremations 

Photo of Outside of Building: 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 1 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Photo of Signage 

Photo of Lobby 

LICENSES 

Establishment permit with name of owner displayed N/A

conspicuously? (NRS 642.465)

Funeral directorsÕ licenses displayed conspicuously? Yes 

(NRS 642.460)

Funeral arrangers' licenses displayed conspicuously? N/A

(NRS 642.460)

Are all individuals meeting with families to make N/A

arrangements properly licensed? (NRS 642.361)

Does the location employ or contract with a licensed Yes 

embalmer? (NAC 642.161)

EmbalmersÕ licenses displayed conspicuously? (NRS N/A

642.110)

Apprentice embalmer certificates of registration N/A

displayed conspicuously? (NRS 642.280)

Does the establishment sell, solicit, negotiate or is party N/A

to any pre-need contract or provide pre-need services? 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 2 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Notes They will sell pre-need after they are 

approved to operate. 

Photo of Displayed Licenses 

New Photo 

New Photo 

New Photo 

LIST NAMES AND LICENSE NUMBERS OF ALL LICENSEES: 

Name Raymond Louis Giddens, Jr. FD923 

License Number 

PREPARATION ROOM 

Does the establishment have a preparation room? (NRS Yes 

642.016)

Is there proper signage and locking doors to prevent Yes 

unauthorized persons from entering preparation room? 

(NRS 642.560)

Is the floor sanitary? (NRS 642.016) Yes 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 3 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Is there necessary drainage? (NRS 642.016) Yes 

Is there proper ventilation in working order? (NRS Yes 

642.016)

Are fumes and odors prevented from entering other Yes 

parts of the building? (NRS 642.016)

Does the location properly store and dispose of Yes 

hazardous waste? (NRS 444.490)

Is this preparation room utilized by the establishment? No 

If not, where are bodies prepared/embalmed?

GiddenÕs Memorial Chapel

Is embalming performed at this location? No 

If not, where are bodies embalmed? Giddens Memorial Chapel 

Notes 

They will replace the waste container with a red container. 

Preparation Room Signage 

Preparation Room Locking Doors: 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 4 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Preparation Room Drainage: 

Preparation Room Ventilation: 

Preparation Room Overview Photo: 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 5 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Hazardous Waste Container Photo: 

HUMAN REMAINS 

Are human remains stored at this location? 

Where are bodies from this location stored? 

Notes 

No refrigeration at this location.

Photo of Outside of Refrigeration

Photo of Inside of Refrigeration

Photo of Temperature Gauge

Additional Holding Areas

Additional Photo 

No 

Giddens Memorial Chapel 

GENERAL ESTABLISHMENT MANAGEMENT 

Is the approved managing funeral director on-site for Yes 

inspection? (Not required)

How often is the approved managing funeral director Will be on site daily until owners are 

on-site to manage establishment? licensed as funeral arrangers. 

Is the managing funeral director available to staff for N/A

supervision? (NRS 642.345)

Does the managing funeral director live within 120 miles Yes 

of the location? (NAC 642.116)

Does the managing funeral director manage more than No 

3 locations? (NAC 642.116)

If the managing funeral director manages more than Yes 

one location are they within 120 miles of each other? 

(NAC 642.116)

Does it appear that the location is being maintained in a Yes 

professional and sanitary manner? (NRS 642.465) (NAC 

642.158) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 6 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Does the location have a blood borne pathogen Yes 

exposure control plan and do they update the plan

annually? (29 CFR 1910.1030)

Have all employees with potential exposure been N/A

provided blood borne pathogen training annually? (29 

CFR 1910.1030)

Have all employees with potential exposure been N/A

offered a hepatitis B vaccination? (29 CFR 1910.1030) 

Notes 

We discussed the risk of blood borne pathogens and possible exposure. 

Photo of blood borne pathogen exposure control plan 

ESTABLISHMENT FORMS AND RECORDS 

Is the establishment maintaining records for at least 7 N/A

years? (NAC 451.200)

Are completed statements of funeral goods and services N/A

signed by the licensee who made the arrangements? 

(NAC 642.152)

Do completed statements of funeral goods and services N/A

contain the license number of the individual who made 

the arrangements? (NAC 642.152) 

Are embalming reports being completed for each N/A

decedent after embalming? (NAC 642.168)

Do the embalming reports include the time period N/A

between death and embalming? (NAC 642.168)

Do the embalming reports include the procedures used N/A

to embalm the remains? (NAC 642.168)

Do the embalming reports include the signature of the N/A

embalmer or apprentice embalmer who embalmed the

remains? (NAC 642.168)

If remains are not stored or cremated at this location, do Yes 

the forms advise consumer of the location where the 

remains will be stored or cremated? (NAC 642.154) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 7 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Do records generally appear to be in good order? Yes 

Notes 

Initial inspection. This facility is not in operation at this time. 

CASKET INVENTORY 

Does the establishment have a display room containing Yes 

an inventory of funeral caskets?

(NRS 642.016, NAC 642.030) Internet or catalogue

display fulfills this requirement.

Do the prices of displayed caskets conform to the casket Yes 

price list? (16 CFR 453.2(a)(b))

Notes: 

They have electronic media for the display of caskets. It will be implemented shortly.

Photo of casket display room or catalogue 

CASKET PRICE LIST 

Does the establishment provide a casket price list? Yes 

(NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(2))

(If prices of all caskets are listed on the GPL, this item is 

not required)

Does the casket price list contain the name of the Yes 

funeral establishment and a caption describing the list 

as a Òcasket price listÓ?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(2)(ii)

Does the casket price list contain the retail prices of all Yes 

caskets and alternative containers offered which do not 

require special ordering, enough information to identify

each, and the effective date for the price list?

(NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(2)(i))

Notes 

GENERAL PRICE LIST (GPL) 

Does establishment have a supply of the GPL readily 

available? 

Yes 

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(b)(4)(i)(A) 

Has the establishment kept a copy of the GPL, CPL, 

OBCPL and SFGSS for one year after the date of their

last distribution to customers? 

N/A 

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.6 

Does the GPL contain the name, address, and phone

number of the establishment? 

Yes 

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(i)(C)(1) 

Does the GPL contain the caption ÒGeneral Price ListÓ?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(i)(C)(2) 

Yes 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 8 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov




FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Is the following disclosure included in immediate 

conjunction with the price range shown for direct

cremations? 

Yes 

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(b)(2)

ÒIf you want to arrange a direct cremation, you can use 

an alternative container. Alternative containers encase 

the body and can be made of materials like fiberboard 

or composition materials (with or without an outside 

covering). The containers we provide are (specify 

containers).Ó

If the prices of outer burial containers are listed on the 

general price list, is the following disclosure included in 

immediate conjunction with those prices?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(c)(2)

Ò[In most areas of the country], [S]tate or local law does 

not require that you buy a container to surround the 

casket in the grave. However, many cemeteries require 

that you have such a container so that the grave will not 

sink in. Either a grave liner or a burial vault will satisfy 

these requirements.Ó 

Is the following disclosure included immediately above

the prices contained in the GPL?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.4(b)(2)(a)

ÒThe goods and services shown below are those we can 

provide to our customers. You may choose only the 

items you desire. However, any funeral arrangements 

you select will include a charge for our basic services 

and overhead. If legal or other requirements mean you

must buy any items you did not specifically ask for, we 

will explain the reason in writing on the statement we 

provide describing the funeral goods and services you

selected.Ó 

Yes 

Yes 

If the establishment lists a separate basic services fee Yes 

that is non-declinable, is the following disclosure

included together with that price?

NRS 642.019 16 CFR 453.2(4)(iii)(C)(1)

ÒThis fee for our basic services [and overhead] will be

added to the total cost of the funeral arrangements you

select. (This fee is already included in our charges for 

direct cremations, immediate burials, and forwarding or 

receiving remains.Ó 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 10 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

If the funeral establishment only states the range of Yes 

prices for the caskets on the GPL, is the following 

disclosure included with the price range?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(4)(iii)(A)(1)

ÒA complete price list will be provided at the funeral

homeÓ 

Notes 

ITEMIZED STATEMENT OF FUNERAL GOODS AND SERVICES 

Does the establishment provide an itemized written Yes 

statement for retention to the purchaser at the

conclusion of discussion of arrangements which contains

the funeral goods and funeral services selected and the

prices to be paid for each item? NRS 642.019, 16 CFR

453.2(b)(5)

Does the statement specifically itemize cash advance Yes 

items to the extent known? NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 

453.2(b)(5)

Does the statement contain the total cost of the goods Yes 

and services selected? NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(5)

Does the statement of funeral goods and services Yes 

identify and briefly describe in writing any legal, 

cemetery, or crematory requirement which the funeral 

provider represents to persons as compelling the

purchase of funeral goods and services for the funeral

which that person is arranging?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(d)(2)

Notes 

STATEMENT OF FUNERAL GOODS AND SERVICES DISCLOSURE 

Is the following disclosure included in immediate Yes 

conjunction with the list of itemized cash advances?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(f)(2)

ÒWe charge you for our service in obtaining: (specify 

cash advance items).Ó

Is the following disclosure included in the statement of Yes 

funeral goods and services selected?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.4(a)(2)(i)(A)

ÒCharges are only for those items that you selected or 

that are required. If we are required by law or by a 

cemetery or crematory to use any items, we will explain 

the reasons in writing below.Ó 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 11 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Is the following disclosure included in the statement of Yes 

funeral goods and services selected?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.5(b)

ÒIf you selected a funeral that may require embalming,

such as a funeral with viewing, you may have to pay for

embalming. You do not have to pay for embalming you 

did not approve if you selected arrangements such as a 

direct cremation or immediate burial. If we charged for 

embalming, we will explain why below.Ó 

Notes 

OUTER BURIAL CONTAINER PRICE LIST 

Does the establishment provide an outer burial Yes 

container price list?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(3)

(If prices of all outer burial containers are listed on the 

GPL, this item is not required)

Does the outer burial container price list contain the Yes 

name of the funeral establishment and a caption

describing the list as a Òouter burial container price 

listÓ? 

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(3)(ii)

Does the outer burial container price list contain the Yes 

retail prices of all outer burial containers offered which

do not require special ordering, enough information to

identify each, and the effective date for the price list?

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(3)(I)

Notes 

CREMATION AUTHORIZATION FORM (NRS 451.660) 

This may be reviewed as part of establishment inspection and/or crematory inspection 

Review written authorization form to ensure that it contains the following information: 

Does the form identify the deceased person? (NRS Yes 

451.660)

Does it contain a statement of whether death occurred Yes 

from communicable or otherwise dangerous disease? 

(NRS 451.660)

Does it list the name and address of agent? (NRS Yes 

451.660)

Does it list agentÕs relationship to decedent? (NRS Yes 

451.660) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 12 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Does it contain representation that agent is not aware of Yes 

any objection to cremation by any person who has a 

right to control the disposition of remains? (NRS 

451.660)

Does it list the name of person authorized to claim Yes 

cremated remains or the name of the cemetery or 

person to whom the remains are to be sent? (NRS 

451.660)

Notes 

ADVERTISING 

Does establishment advertise? Yes 

Types of advertising: 

For any viewed advertising, does it appear that

everything is fairly and accurately represented? (NRS 

642.5172)

Notes: 

New Photo 

Internet 

Yes 

They have a web page set up with generic 

headings. 

New Photo 

BODY DONATION INFORMATION 

Does the establishment work with any whole body donor

organizations? 

Notes 

N/A 

They will use Medcure in the future. 

UNCLAIMED VETERANS 

Has the location reviewed all stored cremated remains 

to determine whether they are in possession of any 

veterans? NRS 642.0197 

N/A 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 13 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist 

Has the location reported all unclaimed remains of any N/A

veterans to the Department of Veterans Services within

1 year? This includes families who have never returned 

to claim the cremated remains. NRS 642.0197 

Notes 

We discussed the need to make sure if they have any veterans they contact veteran services if 

cremains are not claimed within one year. 

REGULATORY FEES 

Is the location in compliance with submission of Unknown 

regulatory fees pursuant to NRS 642.0696?

Do the fees submitted generally correspond to the Unknown 

number of burial permits or death records obtained 

through the Office of Vital Records? NRS 642.0696

In not, request information on how those fees are 

reported.

Notes 

INSPECTION INFORMATION 

Date of Inspection: 11/29/2023

Time of Inspection: 07:55 

Type of Inspection: Initial 

Name of Inspector: Dr. Wayne A. Fazzino 

Signature of Inspector: 

Name of Establishment Representative at Time of Dr. Raymond Louis Giddens, Jr. 

Inspection:

Name of Crematory Representative at Time of Inspection N/A

(If different from Establishment) 

The Funeral and Cemetery Services Board will review all violations found and issue you a formal letter 

after review. 

Signature of Establishment or Crematory Representative 

at Time of Inspection: 

Does it appear that any items may need to be reported No 

to local or state health authorities, OSHA, or the Federal 

Trade Commission? 

Additional Photos 

Additional Photo2 

Additional Photo3 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC Page: 14 

Captured at 12/06/2023 17:30 UTC gocanvas.com

Submission ID: 9BD23FD1-CD7E-4076-9A66-0C5255D60E0A 

https://gocanvas.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


FD919 SBM 





NRS 642.016 defines a funeral establishment as a place of business conducted at a 
specific street address or location devoted to the care and preparation for burial or 
transportation of dead human bodies, consisting of a preparation room equipped with a 
sanitary floor, necessary drainage and ventilation, having access to necessary
instruments and supplies for the preparation and embalming of dead human bodies for 
burial or transportation and having a display room containing an inventory of funeral 
caskets. (Partial caskets, photographs or internet displays may fulfill the inventory
requirement.) Does this establishment meet this definition? 
If no, you may not use this form and must contact the Board office for further instructions. 

w Yes No 

Do you understand that pursuant to NRS 642.465, this permit, issued, must be 
conspicuously displayed in the establishment? 0 Yes □ No 

Do you understand that pursuant to NRS 642.110, 642.280, and 642.460 all funeral 
directors, embalmers and apprentice embalmers employed at the establishment must 
conspicuously display their licenses at the establishment? 

0 Yes No□ 
Do you understand that pursuant to NRS 642.0696, the Board shall collect a $10 
regulatory fee for each written and signed agreement for funeral services in the State? [Z] Yes □ No 

In accordance with NRS 642.435, do you understand that an inspection must be 
conducted prior to issuing and renewing a permit? 0 Yes □ No 

STATE OF NEVADA FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD Page 3 of 5 

Funeral Establishment Permit Application 

Legal Information and Criminal History 
For the purpose of these next sections, the phrase "person subject to disclosure requirements" should be understood to refer to and 
include the following persons. 

1. If the applicant is a natural person, only the natural person making the application; 
2. If the applicant is a corporation, all officers and directors of that corporation; 
3. If the applicant is a limited liability company, all managers and members of the limited liability company; 
4. If the applicant is a partnership, all partners. 

Has any person subject to disclosure requirements had any legal action taken against Yes No□ 0any professional license held for any reason? 
Are there any pending legal actions, complaints, investigations or hearings concerning 

□ Yes No0any person subject to disclosure requirements in process? 
Has any person subject to disclosure requirements ever had a professional license, Yes No0□certification or registration denied, restricted, suspended, or revoked? 
Has any person subject to disclosure requirements ever relinquished responsibilities, 

□ Yes NoILi resigned a position or been fired while a complaint was pending? 
(If you answer "YES" to any of the above questions, a Legal Reporting Form must be 

completed. Form can be found on Board website or mailed upon request.) 

Has any person subject to disclosure requirements ever been convicted of, or pied Yes No□guilty or nolo contendere to, a violation of ANY federal or state statute, city or county 0 
ordinance, or any law of a foreign country? (Exclude minor traffic violations.) (If you 
answer "YES" to this question, a Criminal History Form must be completed. Form can 

be found on Board website or mailed upon request.) 

□

General Questions 

Nevada Business License Information 

Name on State Business License: 

!Gateway to the Valley LLC 

Business License #: Emeloter Identification Number: 

INV20232800171 193-1376971 

Nevada Funeral Board EST App Rev. 4/20/2022 

I 















Stephanie McGee 

From: Jose Ramirez <sgtjoeramirez@outlook.com> 
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2024 9:01 AM
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board
Subject: Re: Camino Al Cielo App 

1 

mailto:sgtjoeramirez@outlook.com




























Stephanie McGee 

From: Jose Ramirez <sgtjoeramirez@outlook.com> 
Sent: Friday, December 22, 2023 3:18 PM
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board
Subject: Camino Al Cielo pics 

1 

mailto:sgtjoeramirez@outlook.com


2 



3 



 
       Sent from my iPhone 

4 



Stephanie McGee 

From: Jose Ramirez <sgtjoeramirez@outlook.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, December 26, 2023 8:09 AM
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board
Subject: Front Of Camino Al Cielo FC 

1 

mailto:sgtjoeramirez@outlook.com


2 



 
 

       Sent from my iPhone 

3 























nsg
Text Box
16132712013

nsg
Text Box
IL-RD

nsg
Line

nsg
Text Box
Funeral and Interment Service- crematorium (19.9.6.N), with accessory office.-Continued legal non-conforming use.

nsg
Line

nsg
Text Box
Nate Gardner

nsg
Text Box
9/6/2023

nsg
Line

nsg
Text Box
BL# 2020313887



























 

 

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

CSERV 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

Marlon Williams, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-21-831467-C 

vs. DEPT. NO. Department 13 

Marlon Carter, Defendant(s) 

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial District 
Court. The foregoing Order Granting Motion was served via the court’s electronic eFile 
system to all recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below: 

Service Date: 12/21/2023 

Robert Pool bobpool@gmail.com 

David Markman David@MarkmanLawfirm.com 

Jason Lather attyjasonlather@gmail.com 

Sheila Winn preneedsheila@gmail.com 

Jason Lather jason@latherlaw.com 

Jesicca Elsee jesicca@markmanlawfirm.com 

Marlon Carter 702ccfs@gmail.com 

Lawrence Phillips lawrencephillipsesq@gmail.com 

Marlon Williams marlon@countyfuneralservices.com 





State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
AUTHORITY 

In accordance with NRS 642.067, NRS 642.365 and NRS 642.435, the Nevada Board of Funeral and 
Cemetery services has authority to inspect any premises where funeral directing is conducted or
embalming practiced. In accordance with NRS 451.635 the Board shall examine the structure,
equipment and location of the crematory. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
Name under which the crematory conducts business : County Funeral Services LLC 
License #: 
Physical address:

1961 Whitney Mesa
Henderson, Nevada 89014 

Mailing address:
1961 Whitney Mesa
Henderson, Nevada 89104 

Phone number: 901-679-2125 
Fax number: 
Owner of crematory: County Funeral Services LLC/Marlon

Williams 
Type of ownership: LLC 
Is the area zoned for mixed, commercial, or industrial, Yes 
and at least 1500 feet from a residential parcel?
Exception for alkaline hydrolysis equipment.  (NRS
451.635)
Notes 

They are using the DBA Perfect Cremations.
Photo of Outside of Building 

Photo of Outside of Building 

LICENSES 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 1 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Is the crematory license issued by the Board displayed N/A
conspicuously?
Are city and/or county permits or licenses displayed? Yes 
Have all individuals operating equipment attended Yes 
approved crematory training? (SB 286)
List names of all individuals who currently operate
equipment:

Dr. Marlon Williams 
Photo of displayed licenses 

Photo of training certificates 

Photo of training certificates
Photo of training certificates 

EQUIPMENT INFORMATION 
Number of machines 1 
Fuel Source Natural Gas 
Manufacturer 

American 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 2 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Date the equipment was last serviced? January 7, 2024
Notes 
Photo of area where equipment located 

Photo of machine 1 

Photo of machine 2 
Photo of machine 3 
Photo of machine 4 

PROCEDURE AND SPACE FOR CREMATION 
Is the space within the crematory enclosed? (NRS
451.680)
Is the crematory only used for the cremation of human
remains? (NRS 451.680) 
Is an identifying document or label removed from
container and kept near control panel until cremation is
completed? (NRS 451.680)
Is all recoverable residue properly removed from
chamber following cremation? (NRS 451.680) 

Yes 

Yes 

N/A 

N/A 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 3 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Is a pulverizer or crusher on site? (Cremated remains Yes 
must be reduced to particles no larger than 1/8 of an
inch) (NRS 451.700)
Does it appear that the location is being maintained in a Yes 
sanitary and professional manner? (NAC 642.158)
Notes 

Initial Inspection. Not in operation at the time of the inspection.
Photo of document or label on control panel
Photo of pulverizer 

Photo 
Photo 

HUMAN REMAINS 
Is any area where bodies are stored awaiting cremation
secure from access by anyone other than employees?
(NRS 451.675, NRS 451.685)
Is any area where bodies are stored awaiting cremation
clean and free of any evidence of leaking bodily fluids?
(NRS 451.675)
Does it appear that any area where remains are stored
awaiting cremation, protects the health and safety of
crematory employees? (NRS 451.675) 
Are all remains present being refrigerated or embalmed
within 24 hours? (NRS 451.675)
Are all human remains refrigerated in a self-contained
mechanical refrigeration unit at a temperature of not
more than 42 degrees?(Temporary rise up to 48 degrees
allowed) (NAC 451.015) 
Are all remains in refrigeration and on site properly
identified? (NAC 451.070) 
Are all remains in refrigeration and on site being stored
without being on top of other remains? (NAC 642.158) 

Yes 

N/A 

Yes 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 4 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Are all remains in refrigeration and on site being stored N/A
face-up? (NAC 642.158)
Are all remains in refrigeration and on site completely N/A
covered or clothed (unless embalming)? (NAC 642.158)
Are all remains in refrigeration and on site being kept N/A
directly off of the floor? (NAC 642.158)
Does it appear that all bodies in refrigeration and on-site N/A
are being treated with dignity and respect at all times?
(NAC 642.158, NRS 451.675)
Does it appear that all bodies are being cremated within N/A
a reasonable period of time? (NRS 451.020)  If no, 
please make notes below for reasons given by staff.
Notes 

Initial inspection. No bodies at this location. Refrigerator on the right is in operation. Refrigerator on
the left is not going to be used and will be replaced. Refrigerator is clean at the time of the inspection.
The retort is also clean of any cremains.

Photo of outside of refrigeration unit 

Photo of temperature reading 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 5 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Photo of inside of refrigeration 

New Photo 
New Photo 
New Photo 

CONTAINERS 
Do all containers used cover the human remains Yes 
completely when closed? (NRS 451.670)
Do all containers used resist leaking or spilling? (NRS
451.670)
Are all containers rigid enough for easy handling or
supported during transport if alkaline hydrolysis is used?
(NRS 451.670)
Notes 

Yes 

Yes 

Photo of containers 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 6 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Photo 

DONOR ORGANIZATIONS 
Does the crematory work with any whole body donor
organizations? 
Does the location cremate body parts? 
Notes 

No 

No 

They will not cremate body parts. 

CREMATION AUTHORIZATION FORM (NRS 451.660) 
This may be reviewed as part of establishment inspection and/or crematory inspection 

Review written authorization form to ensure that it contains the following information: 
Does the form identify the deceased person? (NRS Yes 
451.660)
Does it contain a statement of whether death occurred Yes 
from communicable or otherwise dangerous disease?
(NRS 451.660)
Does it list the name and address of agent? (NRS Yes 
451.660)
Does it list agent’s relationship to decedent? (NRS Yes 
451.660)
Does it contain representation that agent is not aware of Yes 
any objection to cremation by any person who has a
right to control the disposition of remains? (NRS
451.660)
Does it list the name of person authorized to claim Yes 
cremated remains or the name of the cemetery or
person to whom the remains are to be sent? (NRS
451.660) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 7 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Notes 

Form is blank since they are not in operation. 

MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS 
Is the crematory maintaining records for at least 7
years? (NAC 451.200) 
Does the crematory keep a record of each authorization
received? (NRS 451.665) 
Does the crematory keep a record of the name of each
person whose human remains are received? (NRS
451.665)
Does the crematory keep a record of the date and time
of receipt of remains? (NRS 451.665) 
Does the crematory keep a record of the description of
the container in which the remains are received? (NRS
451.665)
Does the crematory keep a record of the date of
cremation? (NRS 451.665) 
Does the crematory keep a record of the final
disposition of the cremated remains? (NRS 451.665) 
Do records generally appear to be in good order? 
If records are not kept on-site, location where records
are stored: 
Notes 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A
Will be stored on-site 

They provided an intake and cremation log. One and the same document.
Photo of cremation log 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 8 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Photo of intake log 

DELIVERY AND TRANSPORTATION OF CREMATED REMAINS 
Does the crematory keep a record of receipts for
delivery of cremated remains? (NRS 451.690) 
Do receipts for delivery of cremated remains contain the
name of the person receiving the remains? (NRS
451.690)
Do receipts for delivery of cremated remains contain the
date, time and place of receipt of the remains? (NRS
451.690)
Are temporary urns used to deliver cremated remains
placed in suitable containers? (NRS 451.690)
Are temporary urns marked with the name of the person
it contains? 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

Yes 

Yes 

(NRS 451.690)
Are temporary urns marked with the name of the
operator of the crematory? (NRS 451.690) 
Notes 

Yes 

They had sample urn with required wording. 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 9 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Photo of temporary urn 

Photo of temporary urn label 

INSPECTION INFORMATION 
Date of Inspection 01/16/2024
Time of Inspection: 10:50 AM 
Type of Inspection: Initial 
Name of Inspector: Dr. Wayne A. Fazzino 
Signature of Inspector: 

Name of Agency Representative at Time of Inspection: Dr. Marlon Williams 
Signature of Agency Representative at Time of
Inspection: 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 10 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com


State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509
Phone (775) 825-5535

Fax (775) 507-4102
Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Date: 01/24/2024Crematory Inspection Checklist
Does it appear that any items may need to be reported
to local or state health authorities, OSHA, or the Federal 
Trade Commission? 

No 
Notes 
Photo 
Photo 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 01/23/2024 20:15 UTC Page: 11 
Captured at 01/23/2024 20:14 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 253001CB-C7C7-4632-84A1-0C715F9FBAEB 

https://gocanvas.com
































From: Brian Curnow 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Subject: Managing Director Information for Kraft Sussman and Vegas Valley Cremation 
Date: Tuesday, January 16, 2024 1:50:30 PM 
Attachments: EXTERNAL Message from KM C360i.msg 

Stephanie, 

Attached are the documents. Please let me know if you need anything else. 

Once again, thank you for all of your help with this! 

Brian 







RG is the MFD for Beverly's Memorial Chapel. SBM 12.28.2023 



  

 

From: kenneth Ceballos 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board; Stephanie McGee; ceballoskenneth13@gmail.com 
Subject: La Eternidad Funeral Home 
Date: Wednesday, December 27, 2023 10:42:04 AM 
Attachments: La Eternidad Funeral Home (1).pdf 

Hello Please review my request. Any questions please contact my cell at any time. 
Happy Holidays 
Kenneth Ceballos 
818)693-0554 

KC 

mailto:ceballoskenneth13@gmail.com


















From: Brian Curnow 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Subject: Managing Director Information for Kraft Sussman and Vegas Valley Cremation 
Date: Tuesday, January 16, 2024 1:50:30 PM 
Attachments: EXTERNAL Message from KM C360i.msg 

Stephanie, 

Attached are the documents. Please let me know if you need anything else. 

Once again, thank you for all of your help with this! 

Brian 

















18 miles from facility. SBM 





 

From: Janell Jones 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Cc: Josiah Anaya 
Subject: Request for Approval of Managing Funeral Director 
Date: Friday, January 19, 2024 3:48:30 PM 
Attachments: Tulip Cremations Req for Approval of Mang FD.pdf 

Good Afternoon, 

I am emailing a Request for Approval of Managing Funeral Director for Tulip Cremations. 

Thank you, 
Janell Jones, Lead Administrative Assistant 
Phone (702) 463-2406 



































 

  

 

From: Tracy Lentz 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Subject: CEU Approval 
Date: Friday, November 17, 2023 6:01:56 AM 
Attachments: Ethics in the Funeral World Nevada.docx 

ContinuingEducationApproval form Nevada.pdf 
Tracy M. Lentz CV 1.pdf 

Hello, 

I hope all is well.  Please see the attached application to present CEU's.  Have a great day. 

Regards, 

Tracy M. Lentz 
President/CEO 
National Institute of Funeral Service 
4 Union Park Road 
Suite 15 
Topsham, ME 04086 
www.Nationalinstitutefs.com 
207-579-4985 

www.Nationalinstitutefs.com










  
  

   
  

 
  

 
 

 
   

     
    

   
     

    
     

    
 

 

    

      

  

   

      

   

     

       

     

   

  

   

     

       

       

   

      

     

TRACY M. LENTZ 

Nesconset, NY 11767 
Office (207) 579-4985 

EDUCATION 

M.A. Sam Huston State University Huntsville, TX 
Master of Arts (Sociology), August 2018 

B.A. State University of New York Stony Brook, NY 
Bachelors in Multi-Disciplinary Sciences, May 1995 

American Academy McAllister Institute of Funeral Service New York, NY 
Associates in Funeral Service, August 1996 

Order of the Golden Rule Award for Funeral Service Excellence 
Perfect Attendance Award 

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE 

Highly skilled academic instructor with the proven ability to teach, implement and evaluate a 
diverse business, management and ethics related curriculum. Possess extensive distance 
education and classroom teaching and assessment experience. Understand the mission and 

responsibility of public community colleges and universities; and private higher education 

institutions, with an awareness of the institutions’ unique role related to student access and 

equity while fulfilling the complex needs of the surrounding community. Ability to plan 

strategically; analyze and synthesize complex information. Effectively communicate and clearly 

convey with others in multiple settings and across organizational levels. Develop, discern, direct 

and complete objectives with competence, and attention to detail. Recognize the role of 

institutional effectiveness and assessment. Adept at recognizing programmatic and regional 

accreditation purposes and functions. 

SELECTED PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES AND RECOGNITIONS 

Board Member of the Nassau Suffolk Crematory, 2016- Present. 

Member, New York Funeral Directors Association, 1996 – present. 

Educator for Life Presenter, Hauppauge High School, 2004. 

CEU Presenter, “Children and Grief”, 6/2007. 

CEU Presenter, “The Long Journey of Grief”, 4/2007. 

CEU Presenter, “Elder Law”, 8/2007. 



    

      

    

        

   

        
     

 

 

 

     

  

  

   

  

    

   

   

      

  

      

      

    

        

      

      

 

 

 

CEU Presenter, “Agent Law”, 5/2008. 

CEU Presenter, “How Knowledge of Death and Dying Will Help Us Become Better Funeral 

Directors” 2010- Present. 

Wrote Bill LD 19 “An Act to Authorize the National Institute of Funeral Service to Grant Associate 
Degrees”, proposed to Senate February 2023. 

Wrote Bill, LR 540 “An Act to Provide Natural Organic Reduction Facilities for Maine Residents for 
the Conversion of Human Remains to Soil”, presented to Senate March 2023 

SKILLS 

• Anatomical Embalming, Civilian Embalming, Funeral Directing, Funeral Service, Funeral Service 
Mortuary Science Education. 

• At need and pre-need funeral service arranging/conducting. 

• Development of unique embalming techniques and embalming solutions to improve upon 

the preservation appearance of human remains. 

• Higher Education Administration, accreditation (ABFSE, UMSEA) 

• Business Administration and Management (daily operations, budgeting, office 

management, programmatic operations) 

• Curriculum design, continuing education programs, policy, executive committee boards, 

legislation, advisory boards 

• Computer skills: Microsoft Office applications, Windows and Macintosh operating 

systems, all internet browsers, funeral service software & Death Care Management 

Systems, Learning Management Systems, Zoom, etc. 

• Active listening, adaptability, creativity, critical thinking, customer service, decision 

making, interpersonal communication, management, leadership, organization, public 

speaking, problem-solving, teamwork, troubleshooting, outreach/public relations. 



   

      

   

       

    

     

    

  

     

   

       

     

    

     

    

    

   

   

       

     

   

     

     

      

   

    

      

PROFESSIONAL AND RELATED EXPERIENCE 

Owner & President National Institute of Funeral Service, LLC, 2022- Present. 

• Identify and acquire students. 

• Provide operational guidance for revenue enhancement. 

• Realize student’s preferences. 

• Develop modes to accommodate changing student attitudes toward death care. 

• Understand the role of education in relation to demographic societal changes. 

• Research textbooks. 

• Research, investigate and report sexism, racism and unethical practices/behavior of corporate 
governing boards and top executive leaders. 

• Strategic and continuity of operations planning. 

• Assist in small business administration. 

• Provide expert legal opinion. 

• Guide compliance with regulatory matters. 

• Provide risk management assessment. 

• Conduct educational research. 

• Develop continuing education programs and presentations. 

• Prepared self-studies: candidacy and initial program accreditation (ABFSE). 

Implemented entire associate of applied science and certificate curriculum. 

• Developed and implemented on-line distance education certification program. 

• Designed and taught academic and continuing education courses. 

• Created, reviewed, edited and tested curriculum. 

• Utilized multiple classroom and on-line presentation techniques/formats. 

• Advised students in degree planning and review of career goals. 

• Integrated instructional technology into curriculum. 

• Task force researcher. 

• Managed personnel, accounts receivable and in-house financial summaries. 



    

    

     

     

        

   

   

    

    

   

   

 

        

  

  

   

    

 

    

    

  

       

   

     

     

  

  

  

• Consulted and advised clients. 

• Strengthened community relations. 

• Represented firms in legal proceedings related to financial recovery. 

• Coordinated relations with local healthcare organizations. 

• Provided in-serve presentations to health professionals, college classes, volunteer groups, etc. 

• Displayed proficiency with technical standards. 

• Facilitated facility planning and expansion. 

• Conducted professional development training. 

• Oversaw implementation of government regulatory compliance programs. 

• Trained personnel. 

• Developed and managed computer inventory tracking program. 

Director of Operation, American Academy McAllister Institute, New York, NY, 2018-2021. 

• Increased student enrollment; increased institutional revenue; and increased investment 

reserves. 

• Worked closely with Board of Trustees to fulfill institutional mission. 

• Developed strategies to achieve goals, allocate resources, implement policies, and set 

procedures. 

• Provided leadership, direction, general supervision and evaluation of the College’s total 

instructional program, including the process for continuous improvement of teaching and 

student learning. 

• Responsible for the financial soundness of the College’s operations through budget planning 
and resource allocation. 

• Reviewed proposals and recommends approval of revised curriculum and courses. 

• Monitored and coordinated continuous quality improvement process for the academic 

program. 

• Served as the liaison to accrediting bodies and government agencies, maintaining a network of 
state and national relationships. 



       

     

        

   

       

  

      

  

   

     

    

 

   

     

      

    

    

      

  

    

    

       

  

  

  

 

      

     

• Worked with administrative staff members to direct, manage and supervise personnel 
responsible for academic and non-academic programs. 

• Articulated mission of the College to serve the campus and community at large. 

• Facilitates marketing and advertising campaign. 

• Responsible for institutional fundraising, marketing and public relations. 

• Implemented recruiting initiatives. 

• Coordinated efforts to ensure student recruitment, admission and support efforts are 
outstanding. 

• Guided program through rigorous initial accreditation process. 

• Provided leadership for educational program. 

• Maintained ICFSEB National Board Examination scores and continuously monitored for 
improvement. 

• Recruited students and industry partners. 

• Created beneficial relationships with regulatory agencies and trade organizations. 

• Coordinated compliance with program, state and regional accreditation/regulatory standards. 

• Prepared self-studies: for reaccreditation (ABFSE). 

• Marketed program locally, regionally and nationally. 

• Developed strong alliances with business and industry. 

• Planned and forecasted course schedules. 

• Oversaw facilities expansion. 

• Develop and analyze program budget. 

Program Director, American Academy McAllister Institute, New York, NY, 2018-2021. 

• Budgeting 

• Curriculum Review 

• Payroll 

Dean and Department Chair of General Education / Interim Director of Admissions, American 

Academy McAllister Institute, New York, NY, 2016-2021. 



       

        

   

  

         

      

    

   

     

    

   

   

   

       

   

  

      

 

 

      

     

       

        

     

       

        

       

     

     

 

• Oversaw all Staff, Faculty, Students and Vendors.  

• In Charge of Hiring, Dismissals and All Aspects of Training 

• Faculty and Staff Review 

• Graduation 

Adjunct Faculty American Academy McAllister Institute, New York, NY, 2008 – 2021. 

• Teaching Sociology, Ethics, Color and Cosmetics, Introduction to Science, Cremation and 

Cemetery Operations, Death and Human Development, Funeral Practicum, and Color and 

Cosmetics, and ABFSE related courses. 

• CEU Lecturer 2001- Present 

Moloney Family Funeral Homes, Inc., Ronkonkoma, NY 

Funeral Director/Manager 2001- 2016 

• Manager of the Preneed Funeral Directors 

• Oversaw Eight People 

• Responsible For Four Million Dollars in Sales Each Year 

SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL, West Babylon, NY 

Preneed Funeral Director 1997-2001 

• Sold Preneed Funeral Responsible for 2 Million in Sales. 

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 

• New York State Funeral Directors Association (NYSFDA) 

• National Funeral Directors Association (NFDA) 

• National Funeral Directors & Morticians Association (NFDMA) 

• Academy of Professional Funeral Service Practice (APFSP) 

• Cremation Association of North America (CANA) 

• American Board of Funeral Service Education (ABFSE) 

• International Conference of Funeral Service Examining Boards (ICFSEB) 

• International Cemetery, Cremation & Funeral Association (ICCFA) 

• University Mortuary Science Education Association (UMSEA) 

• Selected Independent Funeral Homes 

VOLUNTEER WORK/COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS 



         

      

       

     

 

• Member, St. Joseph’s Church, 2006 – present. 

• President Wenonah Elementary School PTA, 2010 – 2021. 

• Girl Scout Leader, Troop 2510, Ronkonkoma, NY 2006- 2010. 

• Ordained Minister, 1996 – Present. 



















































 

 

 

 
 

 

 

   
 

 

   
 

 

    

   

 

  
  

  

  

  
 

  

  
 

 

 

CEU Request 
The International Conference of Funeral Service Examining Boards will host its 120th  
Annual Meeting in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina, on February 28-29th, 2024, at the 
Marina Inn at Grande Dunes. The meeting will feature presentations, regional district 
meetings, and small group discussions to discuss pertinent areas of interest for funeral 
service regulators. As an added bonus to meeting attendees, we would love to offer 
continuing education credits for the programs provided. The programs, a summary of 
events, suggested hours, and speaker biographies are included for your reference. 

Please check the boxes on the left for individual courses  
APPROVED for continuing education credits  

(or approve all programs by checking the last check box on page 2): 

Course Approved  Program  Scheduled Suggested Credit 
by Board for CEU Title Time Hours 

 Tuesday February 27, 2024 

Regulatory Board Service 
101 (Board Member 

Training) 
9:30 am—4:30pm 

*1hour for lunch 
6 

Funeral Service  
Administrators’ Forum 2:30 pm—5:00pm 2.5 

Wednesday February 28, 2024 

Innovations in Licensing 9:45 am—10:45 am 1 

Federal Trade 
Commission 

10:45 am—11:45 am 1 

District Meetings 1:15 pm—3:15 pm 2 

Universal Licensing, 
Portability, & Other Unicorns 3:30 pm—4:30 pm 1 

District Reports 4:30 pm—5:00 pm .5 

1 



Course Approved  Program  Scheduled Suggested Credit 
by Board for CEU Title Time Hours 

 Thursday February 29, 2024

Exam Integrity—Why It 
Matters 8:30 am—9:30 am 1 

Check to approve ALL programs for CE 
(20 hours total including Board Member Training) 



What’s Next? A Discussion 
About the State of Funeral 

Service Licensure 9:30 am—10:30 am 1 

Top Regulatory Cases 10:45 am—11:45 am 1 

The Consensual Donation & 
Research Integrity Act &  

Other Legislation 11:45 am—12:45 pm 1 

Conference Initiatives 2:15 pm—3:15 pm 1 

Professional Standards & 
Licensure—Everybody Gets a 

Trophy? 3:15 pm—4:15 pm 1 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

   

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

   
 

 

   

    

 

 

  

_______________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________ 

I acknowledge that the selected sessions above have been approved for   
continuing education credits/units in the state listed below. 

State/Jurisdiction 

Name        Title  

Please return to: 
allie@theconferenceonline.org 

Questions? 
Additional paperwork 
required? 
Please feel free to contact 
Allie Sparkman. 

allie@theconferenceonline.org 
479.442.7076 ext.5 

Signature       Date

2 

mailto:allie@theconferenceonline.org
mailto:allie@theconferenceonline.org




 
 
 

                         
                               

                         
         

 

                           
   

 

                             
                 

 

                             
         

 

                       
 

                                   
                             

               
 

                           
   

 

 
                               

                               
         

 

                               
 

Tuesday February 27, 2024 
Regulatory Board Service 101 (Board Member Training) 
This informative board member training session will familiarize attendees with the roles and 
responsibilities of serving on a funeral service regulatory board. Seminar topics include: the role of a 
regulatory board member, political realities of board service, discipline and enforcement of licensees, 
and other current regulatory issues. 

Funeral Service Administrators’ Forum 
This forum provides an intimate opportunity for regulatory board staff to discuss common issues 
amongst colleagues. 

Wednesday February 28, 2024 
Innovations in Licensing 
With the growth of technologies, systems and practices are continually evolving. This session will discuss 
recent advancements that could beneficially impact the licensure field. 

Federal Trade Commission 
The Federal Trade Commission will share updates pertinent to The Funeral Rule and regulation relative 
to the funeral service profession. 

District Meetings 
Attendees meet in small groups to discuss issues facing funeral service regulation. 

Universal Licensing, Portability, & Other Unicorns 
Dreams such as universal licensure may appeal to regulators and licensees alike, but is there a world in 
which they could be realities? Regulatory guru Dale Atkinson will examine these ambitions, and the 
attainability of their future in funeral service licensure. 

District Reports 
Representatives from each district meeting share key points from their individual group discussions with 
all attendees. 

Thursday February 29, 2024 
Exam Integrity – Why It Matters 
Exam integrity is of the utmost importance in high‐stakes licensure exams. But why does it really 
matter? Pearson VUE security analyst Matt Mudd will illustrate the value of exam security and the 
impact on the licensure process. 

What’s Next? A Discussion About the State of Funeral Service Licensure 
Join a panel of experts as they share perspectives from their various roles within funeral service. 



                           
                 

 
 

                           
                             

                                 
   

 
 

                           
 

                             
                             
                         
     

Top Regulatory Cases 
Conference Legal Counsel and regulatory expert Dale Atkinson will update attendees on recent court 
cases impacting regulation, identifying key takeaways relevant to attendees. 

The Consensual Donation & Research Integrity Act and Other Legislation 
The “body broker bill” would provide necessary minimum standards to the body donation process, 
ensuring donors’ bodies are treated with dignity and respect. Senior Vice President of Advocacy for 
NFDA, Lesley Witter, will provide updates on this bill, as well as other important legislation at the 
national level. 

Conference Initiatives 
Join Conference staff for updates, and learn what’s on the horizon for next year. 

Professional Standards & Licensure – Everybody Gets a Trophy? 
Exams, education, and licensure requirements ‐ all are barriers to licensure, and yet, all also elevate the 
standards of a profession. Licensee, former board member, and past president of The Conference, Mark 
Ransford, will evaluate the significance of professional standards, and the potential consequences if 
standards are compromised. 



 
 
 

   
                                 
                             

                         
                           

                         
                   

                               
                          

 
       

                             
                           

                 
          

                               
                               

                               
                            

                     
      

 
   
                               
                         
                               
                         

                       
                                 

 
   

   
       

 
   
                 

       
 
 
 
 
 

Dale Atkinson 
Dale J. Atkinson, who received his law degree from Northwestern School of Law, Portland, Oregon, is the 
sole, managing member of the Northbrook, Illinois, law firm of Atkinson & Atkinson, LLC, which 
represents various associations of regulatory boards. Mr. Atkinson represents associations in all matters 
relating to their operations as not for profit corporations, including regulatory activities, education and 
accreditation, disciplinary actions, model legislation and applications, and all phases of the development 
and administration of licensure examination programs, licensure transfer programs, licensure 
credentials verification and storage. He is a frequent speaker before these association clients as well as 
other regulatory groups and also produces numerous writings on these subjects for publications. 

Guillermo Ortiz de Zárate 
With over 30 years of information technology experience and a BS in Information Technology, Guillermo 
has been leading the development and implementation of technology for companies in industries such 
as engineering, urban development, healthcare, banking, international commerce, marketing, 
government, NGOs, regulation, and software. 
In his previous role as Chief Innovation & Information Officer at NCARB, Guillermo led the modernization 
and digital transformation of the Council’s technology and its sophisticated use of data. His portfolio has 
expanded since January 2024 and he is now the Chief Strategy Officer of the organization. Guillermo 
also holds an MBA from Carey School of Business at the Johns Hopkins University. 
Guillermo is, concurrently, the founder and President of Lineup®, NCARB’s wholly‐owned software‐as‐a‐
service subsidiary (www.lineupteams.com). 

Rebecca Plett 
Rebecca Plett is an attorney in the Division of Marketing Practices of the Federal Trade Commission’s 
Bureau of Consumer Protection. Her primary duties involve enforcement and policy matters, including 
serving as a co‐coordinator of the FTC’s Funeral Rule program. Before coming to the FTC, Rebecca 
worked at the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau where she focused on consumer financial 
protection regulations and compliance with those regulations. She received her undergraduate degree 
from East Carolina University and her Juris Doctor from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill. 

Matt Mudd 
Pearson VUE 
Biography not yet provided. 

Natasha Culbertson 
Arizona Department of Health Services, Bureau of Special Licensing 
Biography not yet provided. 

www.lineupteams.com


   
                             

                               
                               
                                   
                           

                               
                                   
                       

 
   
                                 

                                 
                                 
                         
                         

                           
                         

                           
                         

                             
                                   

                   
 

   
 

       
 

   
                             

                               

                                   

                               

                                 

                             

             

   
                                   

                               

                         

                         

                   

                             

                               

                             

             

Richard Little 
As a 35 year resident of Longview/Kelso, WA, Rick currently serves as the Vice President/General 
Manager of the Pierce Group Inc. where he manages the operations of Steele Chapel at Longview 
Memorial Park and Dahl McVicker Funeral Homes, as well as several other funeral homes in the 
Southwest Washington area. He is currently serving on the WA Funeral & Cemetery Board and is a Past 
President of the Washington State Funeral Directors Association, where he was honored as Funeral 
Director of the Year in 2009. He has been involved with Stageworks Northwest, a non‐profit community 
theatre, for the past 14 years and is Past President of the Kelso Lions Club and Longview Community 
Church. He and his wife, Lorraine, have two children, Lance and Amy. 

Jolena Grande 
Jolena Grande is a tenured faculty member in the Health Science Division at Cypress College. She has 
been with the Mortuary Science Program for almost 30 years and has taught all aspects of the 
prescribed ABFSE curriculum content, though spends much of her time focusing on the Arts side of the 
accredited Associate degree program and overseeing the Bachelor of Science in Funeral Service 
completion program. She is a licensed cemetery manager, crematory manager, embalmer and funeral 
director in California, a Certified Funeral Service Practitioner, and an Oklahoma licensed embalmer. She 
regularly volunteers her time with the American Board of Funeral Service Education, International 
Conference of Funeral Service Examining Boards, and serves on the California Department of Consumer 
Affairs Cemetery and Funeral Bureau Advisory Committee. Miss Grande graduated from Cypress College 
with her Associates degree in Mortuary Science, transferred to the University of Central Oklahoma for 
her Bachelor of Science in Funeral Service, and holds a Master of Forensic Science degree. She lives in 
Southern California and enjoys helping develop future funeral service practitioners. 

Lesley Witter 
NFDA 
Biography not yet provided. 

Dalene Paull 
Dalene Paull began her career with The International Conference of Funeral Service Examining Boards in 
1998 as a registrar. Ms. Paull was promoted to Assistant Executive Director and after becoming Acting 
Executive Director in 2001, was hired as Executive Director in 2002. She has been an active participant in 
the regulatory community throughout her career and has served on the Board of Directors for the 
Federation of Associations of Regulatory Boards (FARB) since 2008. Ms. Paull has a Bachelor of Arts in 
Criminal Justice from the University of Arkansas and received her Masters of Public Administration from 
the University of Arkansas in May 2005. 

Dustin Wardlow 
Dustin has been with The Conference since 2008. He is a graduate from the University of Arkansas and 
holds a Bachelor of Science in Agricultural, Food and Life Sciences with a concentration in Education, 
Communication, and Technology. Dustin recently became the Exam Program Director and is now 
responsible for managing the exam program for The Conference, including working closely with 
examination committees, accredited mortuary science programs, regulatory agencies, exam candidates, 
and the testing vendor to continually improve the testing experience. He previously served in various 
information and technology roles for The Conference for nearly 15 years. He enjoys classic movies and 
British television shows, including the panel show “Q.I.” Dustin lives in Fayetteville, Arkansas with his 
wife, Ashley, and dogs, Humphrey and Nan. 



     
                                 

                           

                             

                             

                         

                    

   
                               

                                 

                                 

                               

                           

                               

                                   

                              

   
   

       
 

   
                                       

                                   
                               

                           
                                   

                                 
                             
                     

 
 
 
 

Anna Scott McClendon 
Anna Scott was hired by The Conference in 2019 as an administrative assistant. She then assumed the 
position of Candidate Services Coordinator with The Conference in January of 2023. Her current 
responsibilities include managing many of the daily operations of the office, while also working directly 
with candidates to assist them throughout their exam process. Anna Scott holds a B.A in 
Communications and Hospitality Management from the University of Arkansas. She lives in Fayetteville, 
Arkansas, and enjoys travel and reading in her free time. 

Allie Sparkman 
Allie began her career with The Conference in 2012 as a part‐time administrative assistant. After serving 
in this capacity for several years, she joined The Conference full‐time in 2015. Allie graduated with her 
Bachelor of Arts from the University of Arkansas in 2018, and continued to serve in the Candidate 
Services Manager role. Allie has recently taken over as the Director of Member Engagement, serving as 
the liaison for the Conference membership and working in meeting planning and communications. Allie 
lives with her husband, Brett, dogs Cinnamon and Crunch, and four old, grumpy cats in Springdale, 
Arkansas. In her spare time, Allie loves reading, going to the movies and concerts, and runs a local 
community group that hosts monthly events for dinner groups, themed movie nights, and book clubs. 

Andrew Joseph 
The Conference 
Biography not yet provided. 

Mark Ransford 
Mark was elected to his first term on The Conference Board of Directors in 2017 and served as the 111th 

President of The Conference. He graduated from the University of Michigan in Ann Arbor in 2002 with a 
focus in Business and Psychology, and continued his education at Wayne State University in Detroit with 
a Bachelor’s Degree in Mortuary Science and a Post‐Bachelor Certificate in Forensic Investigation. He 
was licensed in 2003 and returned to his hometown of Caro, Michigan to join his father’s practice after 
training in Saginaw, Detroit and Kalamazoo, Michigan. He is a past Chairman of the Michigan Board of 
Examiners in Mortuary Science and is a past District President of the Michigan Funeral Directors 
Association. He and his wife, Lainey, have three young boys. 

















     
    
 

  

 

A Modern, SaaS Platform for Regulators, by 
Regulators 

Streamline Regulation with Thentia Cloud: 
Empowering Compliance, Ensuring Enforcement
and Efficient Licensing 

Presented to: 
January 10, 2024 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

   
     

  

  
 

    
   

Cost Estimate Included Features 
• Application Portal 
• Licensee Portal 
• Licensing Portal 
• Public Register Portal 521 Active Registrants • Inspector Portal 

$18,000 Annually • Online Complaints Portal 
Price Per Active Registrant Per Month: $2.88 • Business Portal 
Net 30 Days- Billed Annually • Workbench Portal 
*Alternative Payment Plan Options Available If • Communication Module 

needed 
• Governance Module 
• Finance Module 
• Security Module 
• Analytics Module 
• Data Extracts 
• Embedded Analytics and Reporting 
• No Limit on Data File Types or Storage 
• Upcoming Product Updates Included 



  
  

 

     

Simplify, automate,
and digitize the
complete licensing 
and renewal process 
with Thentia Cloud. 

One tool for all your stakeholders 



  

 

 

 

  
 

  

 

 
 

   

  

  

 

  

  

 

 
  

  

   

 
 

   

  
 

 

  

  
  

    

Thentia's World Class 
Streamlined Onboarding 

KICKOFF 

Kickoff Meeting 

o Dedicated CSM 
o Introduction 
o Roles and POCs 
o Thentia Onboarding

Process 
o Deployment Plan

alignment 

PRE-DELIVERY 

Guided Workshops 

o Set critical dates 
o Branding guidelines 
o Data gathering and

mapping 
o Defined Business 

Outcomes 
o Configurations 

through user stories 
and visuals 

o Vertical 
based templates 

DELIVERY 

An Iterative Experience 

o Dedicated Delivery
Team 

o Workbench and Portal 
o Configuration 
o Data Validation 
o Guided User 

Acceptance Testing 
workshops 

POST DELIVERY 

Ready When You Are 

o Fully configured and 
production ready 
customer instance 

o Final data load 
for cutover 

o Warm Handoff 
to Thentia Support
and Customer 
Success 

CUSTOMER 
SUPPORT 

Onboarding Complete 

Reach out to 
Support@Thentia.com
for continued support 

Your Customer 
Success Manager is 
your single point of 
contact. 

mailto:Support@Thentia.com


    

     

   

     
    

  

     

       
 

      
 

  

     

   

  

   

  

  

    

  

 

       
 

        
  

 

      

   

  

Thentia Customer Journey 

Change Requests 

• All change requests are managed by your 
CSM 

• Your CSM ensures a vehicle for growth and
customization within the platform 

Training & Adoption 

• Full training via our dedicated team 

• Support to ensure a seamless transition onto
the platform 

• Users are empowered to perform mission 
critical tasks 

Relationship Management 

• Your CSM advocates at a board level 

• C-suite for central agencies 

• MBR / QBR 

Time to Value 

Your dedicated customer success manager will: 

• Guide implementation process 

• Align and deliver desired outcomes 

• Deliver value quickly 

Ticket Management & Escalation 

• Multi-layered support model 

• Service desk team 

• Regular cadence for ticket management 

• CSM supports entire process 

Implementation 

During implementation, your CSM will: 

• Act as a lens into your project 

• Coordinate all project resources 

• Provide guidance, escalation & critical
updates for a successful launch 



     

 

 

 
 

 
 

Implementation Differentiation 

Your 
Requirements 

Regulatory
Platform 

Regulatory
Excellence 
Framework 

Regulatory
Implementation

Specialists 

Accelerated Fully Managed 
Implementation Platform 

Your 
Solution 

Risk Mitigation 



 Thank you 



 

 
 

    

 

Appendix 2 - STATEMENT OF WORK 

1.  Overview .................................................................................................................................  2  

1.1.  Statement  of  Work.................................................................................................................................................2  

1.2.  Project  Objectives..................................................................................................................................................2  

2.  Fees .........................................................................................................................................  2  

2.1.  Fees Applicable  to  this SOW ...........................................................................................................................2  

2.2.  Payment  Terms  .....................................................................................................................................................  3  

3.  Scope  of  Project  ....................................................................................................................  3  

3.1.  Additional  Product  Assumptions .................................................................................................................... 7  

3.2.  Project  Completion ................................................................................................................................................ 7  

4.  Project  Activities  ....................................................................................................................7  

4.1.  Project  Description ...............................................................................................................................................  8  

4.2.  Project  Team  and  Stakeholder  Responsibilities ...................................................................................  8  

4.3.  Project  Phases,  Activities and  Deliverables  ...........................................................................................  9  

4.4.  Support  and  Escalations During  Onboarding  ....................................................................................... 15  

4.5.  Exclusions ................................................................................................................................................................ 16  

4.6.  Project  Schedule .................................................................................................................................................. 16  

4.7.  Client  Responsibilities  ....................................................................................................................................... 17  

4.8.  Assumptions ........................................................................................................................................................... 18  

5.  Project  Management  and  Software  Delivery  Methodology  ............................................. 18  

5.1.  Communications................................................................................................................................................... 18  

5.2.  Quality Assurance  ............................................................................................................................................... 19  

5.2.1.  Testing  Approach ....................................................................................................................................... 19  

5.3.  Data  Upload ..........................................................................................................................................................  20  

5.4.  Training  ..................................................................................................................................................................... 21  

5.5.  Support ..................................................................................................................................................................... 23  

1 



 

 
 

     

       

     

      

     

 

  

    

  

  

 

   

    

   

  

     

  

 

    

  

   

   

  

  

 

      

5.5.1. Service Levels ........................................................................................................................................... 24 

5.5.2. Incident Response and Resolution. ............................................................................................... 25 

5.6. Change Management .......................................................................................................................................27 

5.7. Change Request Rates .................................................................................................................................. 28 

5.8. Customer Success ............................................................................................................................................ 29 

1. OVERVIEW 

1.1. Statement of Work 

Client has purchased licensing for the Thentia Cloud Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) solution. Client may 

utilize Thentia training modules available to configure Thentia Cloud.  However, this SOW outlines how 

Thentia will onboard Client at no additional charge. 

Client acknowledges that Thentia may incorporate pre-built components and pre-existing software 

packages into deliverables to be developed under this SOW. 

This SOW represents the complete baseline for scope, services, service deliverables, and acceptance 

applicable to this project. All changes to this document will be managed in accordance with the change 

management process described at section 5.6 below. 

1.2. Project Objectives 

The objectives of this project include: 

▪ Implementation of Thentia Cloud configured as per the Client approved Solution Package 

▪ Upload of existing Client data into Thentia Cloud 

▪ Training of Client staff 

▪ Transition to Customer Operations Support and connecting Client to Service Desk 

2. FEES 

2.1. Fees Applicable to this SOW 

Professional Services / Project Fees One-Time Cost 

2 



 

 
 

         

 

    

   

 

    

  
  

 

   

     

  

   

  

 

   

 

   

   

      

    

 

  

    

                  

    

 

   

 
 

  
  

 
  

 
  

   

Professional Services / Project Fees $0 ($30 – 100% discount) 

One-Time Cost One-Time Cost 

Support Services $0 

Change Request Fees Per Hour 

Change Requests (Additional 
Professional Services) 

$225.00 

2.2. Payment Terms 

a. This SOW and any invoice delivered by Thentia to Client will include all the payment terms for 

fees payable by Client to Thentia. 

b. “Rates Increase” means an increase by an amount that is the greater of (i) 2% and (ii) the 

increase in the annual U.S. Consumer Price Index (all-items) as published by the U.S. Bureau of 

Labor Statistics. 

c. All fees for any professional services to be paid by Client and associated payment terms will be 

set out in this SOW. Professional Services Fees may be calculated on a time and materials basis 

at the rates specified in the applicable SOW, on a fixed fee basis or on such other basis as may 

be specified and agreed in a particular SOW. 

d. No more than once per calendar year following the first anniversary of the Effective Date, Thentia 

may apply an annual increase to Change Request fees. Thentia will provide Client with prior 

written notice of each applicable Rates Increase. 

e. All amounts referred to herein are denominated in U.S. dollars. 

3. SCOPE OF PROJECT 

Thentia Cloud provides a number of features that can be enabled for Clients as needed to meet their specific 

requirements. The following are the product features that will be provided as part of this implementation. 

Product Feature Included 

Applicant Portal 
The web portal used by applicants to establish 
an account with the regulatory body and apply 
for a license. 

Configuration of the Applicant Portal to support 
the following types of applicants for individuals: 

Application Type 
● License Type 

3 



 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
  

 
 

 
  

   

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

   
   
   

  
 

 

   
 

 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
  

   
 

 
 

  
   

  

 
  

 
 

 

  
 

 
  

  
  

  

Business Portal Configuration of the Business Portal to support 
the following types of licensees/registrants. 

Initial Application: 

Application Type 
● License Type 

Renewals: 

Application Type 
● License Type 

School Portal 
Education institutions can submit student 
information to the regulator for a student 
license and record experience hours reports 
for that student. This portal is primarily directed 
at trade institutions that receive experience 
hour reports. 

Configuration of the School Portal to support 
student license application and experience hour 
submissions. 

Workbench Portal 
The administrative back-office used by Client 
staff to manage licensees and configuration of 

Configuration of standard functionality for the 
Modules: 

● Governance Module 

Licensee Portal 
The web portal used by existing 
licensees/registrants to view and update their 
profile, register and report on continuing 
education activities, make payments, renew 
their license and download wallet cards. 

Public Register Portal 
The public-facing licensee/registrant database 
with searchable records displaying the 
licensee’s profile including authorizations, 
public notices and any other information 
required by legislation. Public Register Portal 
allows the public to search for status of the 
licensee or business and displays disciplinary 
actions and licensee history. 

Configuration of the Licensee Portal to support 
the following types of individual 
licensees/registrants: 

Application Type 
● License Type 

Configuration of standard Portal functionality 
included. 

Inspector Portal 
Case management solution to accommodate 
site assessors, designed to accommodate the 
process of scheduling inspections, 
collaborating, and collecting data on subjects. 

Online Complaints Portal 
Members of the public can submit a complaint 
about a licensee and detail specific information 
related to the complaint in support of any 
investigatory needs. 

Configuration of facility-based inspections for the 
following processes: 

● Initial Inspection 
● Re-Inspection 
● Unscheduled Inspection 

Configuration of an inspection associated with 
an entity/facility application 

Configuration of the standard online complaint 
intake form for complaints about a licensed 
licensee or entity 

4 



 

 
 

 
 

  
   
   
  
   
  
  
  

   
 

 
   

  

 
  

 
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

  
 

 

  
 

  
  

  
  

 
 

  

  
 

 

  
 

   

  
  

 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
 
   

  

Thentia Cloud. The Workbench Portal provides 
access to the functional Modules outlined in 
this table. 

● Communications Module 
● Continuing Education Module 
● Complaints Module 
● Register Module 
● Finance Module 
● Configuration Module 
● Security Module 
● Analytics Module 

Governance Module 
Provides the ability to track board members 
and their membership terms, as well as the 
ability to serve as a document repository for 
board members to access. 

Member records can be created to create 
committees. A separate document repository is 
also available to committees. Case dispositions 
related to the committee can also be managed 
within the Governance Module. 

Board meetings are also included in the module. 
Meetings can be scheduled, with meeting invites 
sent from the system itself, including agenda, 
web and teleconference joining options. Meeting 
notes can be recorded about a meeting while it 
is in progress, including start and end times, 
attendance, quorum, facilitator, recorder, and 
timekeeper, and notes about the meeting. 
Motions and votes can also be recorded. 

Communications Module 
Ability to send mass emails to customizable 
lists of licensees 

Our team can configure bulk transaction emails. 
Transactional emails and letter templates are 
configurable. Client to provide one email 
template per transaction scenario. 

Continuing Education Module 
The Continuing Education Module allows the 
configuration of credit/hour based continuing 
education programs by license type. This 
includes whole program requirements as well 
as categorical requirements. Additional 
continuing education can be configured for 
authorizations, should that be required. 

Configuration of the Continuing Education 
Module to support the following types of 
continuing education: Hours completed, type of 
education, provider of education, dates, total 
required hours according to license type 

Complaints Module 
Ability to manage incoming complaints and 
case management for ongoing investigations. 

Configuration of the Complaints Module 
includes: 

● Complaint Types 
● Case Stages 
● Case Categories 
● Case Statuses 
● Disposition Types 
● Disposition Statuses 
● Public Notice Types 

Register Module 
Ability to manage individuals or businesses, 
including applications, renewals, change 
requests and all other registration matters 
pertaining to an individual or business. 

Configuration of the Register Module is included. 

5 



 

 
 

   
  

  

  
  

   
  

  
 

  
 

 

  
   

  
 

 
   

 

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
      
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
  

  
 

 

 
             

   

         

  

   

Finance Module 
Ability to manage fee schedules, creation of 
invoices and payments. 

Configuration of the Finance Module includes: 
● Fee Items 

Configuration Module 
Allows for the management of configurable 
components within Thentia Cloud. This 
includes branding, contact information, license 
types, application types, required documents, 
navigation items, string resources, inspection 
checklists, payment processors, certificate & 
wallet card templates, lists, and more. 

Access to the Configuration Module can be 
granted to super users on a case-by-case basis. 

Security Module 
Ability to manage staff user credentials and 
privileges with Role Based Access Control 
(RBAC) 

Configuration of the Security Module is included. 
This module Includes the configuration of 
internal users, user groups and role-based 
access control for each. 

Analytics Module 
Write and execute SQL queries on any data 
point in Thentia Cloud. The Analytics Module 
also enables the export of data, visualizing the 
information in graphics, and assembling 
graphics and queries into dashboards. 

Predefined reports provided as part of the 
product – Please see Attachment A for report 
listing. 

Clients can create their own reports using SQL 
queries within the Analytics Module. All data 
within the product is exposed for use within the 
Analytics Module. 

All reports can be exported to CSV or Excel 
format. 

Integrations 
Ability to send messages (API Calls) based on 
triggered events within the system to an 
external API and/or receive messages from 
external systems. 

Payment processor 
● Assumes payment processor is one of 

the following payment providers: 
[Payment.Processor] 

Integrations with System X to facilitate data 
extract to an external recipient for regulatory 
reporting 

Data Extracts Regular (i.e. daily, weekly, monthly, annually) 
data extracts: 

● eHealth reporting 
● Regulatory reports for external 

stakeholders 

Product features that are currently not in scope can be added as a Change Request or separate project 

and are not included in the scope of this project. 

Additional features may be added as part of the ongoing enhancement and management of the Thentia 

Cloud product. As features become available, they will be categorized as follows: 

1. General features/functionality that do not require configuration. 

6 



 

 
 

   

   

  

             

   

    

 

 

  

 

            

            

  

   

  

            

    

   

              

              

  

     

  

    

              

 

                

                

              

          

● Client receives these automatically at no additional cost if Client is on the latest version of 

the Thentia Cloud product. (Examples: new reports, usability updates to interfaces, etc.) 

2. Features/functionality that require services to configure to meet Client requirements. 

● These additional services can be added as a Change Request or a separate SOW and are 

not included in the scope of this project. (Examples: new portals, new modules) 

3.1. Additional Product Assumptions 

The following are additional product assumptions that impact the implementation of features: 

Accessibility 

● Must meet compliance standards including but not limited to WCAG Level AA. 

Browser Support 

● All applications must run on modern W3C compliant browsers, including tablet and mobile device 

platforms such as Apple and Android. These browsers include, but are not limited to, current and 

the three last versions of Firefox, Opera, Google Chrome, Microsoft Edge and Safari. 

3.2. Project Completion 

The project will be considered complete when any of the following are met: 

1. All of the service deliverables identified as in-scope within this SOW have been completed, 

delivered and accepted or deemed accepted, including approved Change Request Forms; or 

2. A signed Project Completion Form has been received from the Client; or 

3. All Level 1 and 2 application defects discovered during the User Acceptance Testing (“UAT”) phase 

have been fixed during the UAT phase and code delivery has been validated by the Client within 

10 days of delivery; or 

4. The solution is in functional use either internally or externally; or 

5. This agreement is terminated pursuant to the provisions of the agreement. 

4. PROJECT ACTIVITIES 

The following describes the activities that will be performed, and the deliverables provided as part of the 

project. 

As part of our commitment to ensuring a seamless delivery process, within 10 days of contract 

signing, Client shall provide 3 date availability options (each at least 30 days from date of signing, 

spanning 5 consecutive days) for participation in a series of pre-delivery workshops. One of the 

three options will be chosen by Thentia. Additionally, Client agrees to be available 2 hours per day, 

7 



 

 
 

             

      

    

             

 

            

           

 

           

   

     

 

  

 

     
    

 
    
     
 

 

     
    
    

  
 

    
  

  

    
   
   

  

      
  

 
   

  

three days per week, during the delivery phase, and will make all required resources available to 

complete UAT in a workshop approach over a period of 3- 5 consecutive days. 

4.1. Project Description 

Thentia will onboard and collaborate with Client to initialize, configure and launch Thentia Cloud for the 

designated Client organization. As part of the project, Thentia will upload Client’s data and provide training 

services to prepare Client for launch. Thentia will also provide transition to post-launch maintenance and 

ongoing Client support services provided by the Thentia Service Desk and Thentia Customer Success 

Team. 

The project will be managed based on industry standard project management and software delivery 

methods as described in this section. 

4.2. Project Team and Stakeholder Responsibilities 

Role Responsibilities 

Client Roles 

Project Sponsor ● Reviews and approves documents and deliverables 
● Participates in workshops to collect and document 

the scope details 
● Participates in meetings as required 
● Participates in the training and UAT activities 
● Serves as a subject matter expert for business 

goals/value 

Subject Matter Experts ● Participates in meetings as required 
● Participates in design of business processes 
● Performs data mapping in the Thentia Data 

Mapping Template 
● Conducts data clean-up to ensure the data is 

accurate and up to date 
● Executes UAT 

Thentia Roles 

Customer Success Manager ● Owner of overall Client relationship 
● Stakeholder in Client implementation project 
● Point of escalation on relationship matters during 

implementation project 

Program Manager ● Provides program level oversight and expertise 
● Point of contact for external oversight committees, 

if applicable 
● Point of escalation on project related matters during 

implementation project 

8 



 

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 
    

  
  

  
  

   
  

    
 

   
  

  
 

   
   

    
 

     
   
   
   

  
   

  
 

 
  

     
   
   

 

    

 

   
 

 
 

Project Manager ● Actively manages, communicates, and mitigates 
project risks / issues and escalates when 
necessary 

● Manages sponsors, stakeholders, and team 
expectations throughout the project 

● Provides detailed project planning documentation 
(risk management log, status reports, schedule, 
etc.) 

● Responsible for managing the execution of all 
project milestones/deliverables 

● Provides leadership and actively manages the 
project team resources within the confines of the 
project 

● Manages project scope and escalates issues and 
risks where necessary 

Project Coordinator ● Assists the Project Manager with the coordination 
of resources, meetings, and information 

Regulatory Consultant ● Provides subject matter expertise on regulation 
and/or regulatory processes 

Analyst/Implementation Specialist ● Leads the workshops to define the scope for the 
project 

● Works closely with Client to ensure the project 
meets business needs 

● Configures the system in alignment with the 
signed-off Solution Package 

● Supports Client during training, UAT and launch 
activities 

Trainer ● Provides eLearning modules to Client 
● Analyzes training needs with client 
● Coordinates with client to schedule training 
● Conducts required training on Client configuration 

before UAT 
● Documents training feedback from Client 

Technical Architect ● Provides enterprise integration with external 
systems 

● Designs custom architecture and technical 
solutions, if required 

Quality Assurance ● Performs quality assurance/functional testing 
● Executes smoke testing 
● Executes penny testing (payment processor) 

4.3. Project Phases, Activities and Deliverables 

Activity Details Thentia Key Client Key 
Activities Activities 

9 



 

 
 

    

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

  
 

 
  

  
  

 
  

 
 

  
  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 

 
 

   
 
 
 

 
 

 
   

  
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Phase 1: Planning and Initiation 

Kick-Off Meeting The purpose of the 
Kick-Off meeting is to 
facilitate 
introductions, review 
and confirm the 
scope of work, align 
on the 
implementation 
approach and roles 
and responsibilities, 
and review the high-
level timeline. 

NOTE: The timeline 
will be re-baselined 
once the Solution 
Package is signed-off 
by Client as part of 
Phase 1. 

● Introductions 
● Review scope 

of work 
● Review roles 

and 
responsibilities 

● Review 
implementation 
approach 

● Review high-
level timeline 

● Provide link to 
eLearning 
Modules 

● Next Steps 

● Introductions 
● Confirm Scope 

of Work 
● Confirm Client 

responsibilities 
● Approve high-

level timeline 
● Approval to 

proceed 

Collecting 
Information/Sample 
Data 

Thentia will provide 
links to secure folders 
where Client can 
upload: 

● Relevant 
documentation 
regarding 
current 
applications, 
workflows, etc. 

● Sample Data 
● Payment 

processor 
information 

● Templates for 
certificates and 
wallet cards. 
Client will need 
to review and 
make desired 
updates. 

NOTE: Sample data 
must be a 
representation of the 
full dataset in the 
Client’s current 
system. This robust 
dataset will enable 
Client to confirm 
during UAT that data 
is being loaded 
properly into the 

● Provide access 
to secure 
folders 

● Deliverable -
Provide 
Thentia 
standard Data 
Dictionary and 
Thentia Data 
Mapping 
Template to 
Client 

● Deliverable -
Provide 
documentation 
and templates 
via the secure 
folders 

● Deliverable – 
Provide 
payment 
processor 
information via 
the secure 
folders 

● Perform data 
mapping 

● Deliverable -
Provide 
sample data in 
the Thentia 
required 
format and 
template via 
the secure 
folders 

10 



 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

   

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 

  

 
 

 
  

  
  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
  

  
 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
  

  
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 

  

  
 

  

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
  

  

 
 
 
  

  
 

 
 
  

   
 

 
 

 
  

   
 

Solution Package Thentia will create a 
solution document 
(“Solution Package”) 
that fully outlines the 
scope that will be 
delivered. This 
document is signed 
off by the Client 
before configuration 
begins. 

● Schedule and 
facilitate 
workshops to 
document 
scope 

● Deliverable – 
Solution 
Package 

● Participate in 
workshops 
and 
collaborate 
with Thentia 
team to 
identify scope 

● Review and 
sign-off on 
Solution 
Package 

Detailed Project 
Timeline 

The Detailed Project 
Timeline will be 
created once Client 
has signed off on the 
Solution Package and 
scope is agreed 
upon. Client will 
approve the Detailed 
Project Timeline and 
the project plan will 
be re-baselined for 
progress 
measurement and 
status tracking for 
Phase 2 and 3 of the 
project. 

● Deliverable – 
Detailed 
Project 
Timeline 

● Re-estimate 
schedule and 
cost based on 
any new 
requirements 
identified – this 
will follow the 
Change 
Management 
process 
outlined in 
section 5.6 

● Review and 
approve 
Detailed 
Project 
Timeline 

● Formal sign-
off of any 
change 
requests to 
update budget 
and timelines, 
if required 

Phase 2: Execution 

Configuration 

Thentia Cloud 
system. 

Sample data is not 
the final dataset and 
should not be 
considered the final 
dataset, in part or in 
whole. 

Configuration of the 
environment is 
completed using an 
iterative approach. 
Client collaboration 
during the 
configuration process 
is critical for 
implementation 
success. 

● Iterative 
solution 
configuration 
based on 
Solution 
Package 

● Configure 
integrations as 
required, 
including 
payment 
processor 
integration 

● Participate in 
configuration 
workshops 
and provide 
feedback to 
project team 

● Deliverable -
Provide 
documents for 
email and 
letter 
templates 

● Deliverable -
Provide 

11 



 

 
 

  
 

  
   

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

   
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 
  

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
  
 

 
 

   
   

 
   

 
 

   

 

  
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 
  

 
 

   

 
 

 

● Create data 
extracts as 
required 

● Deliverable – 
Working 
Thentia Cloud 
system 

credentials for 
integrations as 
required via 
the secure 
folders 

Data Upload – 
Sample Data 

Thentia will upload 
Client sample data 
into the sandbox 
environment. 

● Upload Client 
provided 
sample data 

● Validate 
sample data 
upload into 
sandbox 
environment 

● Correct data 
and data 
mapping file 
as required 

● Deliverable -
Sign-off on 
sample data 
upload via the 
UAT sign-off 
form (post 
UAT 
completion) 

Testing Client will be required 
to complete User 
Acceptance Testing 
(UAT). Our iterative 
approach includes 
multiple user 
acceptance test 
cycles as the portals 
and modules are 
configured. This 
allows Client to 
engage with the 
solution much earlier 
in the implementation 
process and builds a 
solid foundation of 
solution 
understanding. 

● Client will have 
access to a 
sandbox 
environment 
for UAT. 

● Client will be 
required to 
complete the 
eLearning 
Modules and 
participate in 

● QA testing 
● Deliverable – 

Test Exit 
Report 

● Deliverable – 
UAT 
Guidelines 

● Deliverable – 
UAT Feedback 
Tracker 

● Execute User 
Acceptance 
Testing 

● Participate in 
daily UAT 
status 
meetings to 
provide 
progress 
status and 
feedback 
details to the 
project team 

● Complete the 
UAT 
Feedback 
Tracker daily 
for review in 
the UAT status 
meetings 

● Sign-off on 
User 
Acceptance 
Testing – this 
includes 
functionality 
and data 
upload sign-off 

12 



 

 
 

  

 
 

  
  

 
  

  
   

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

  
  

  
 

   
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 

    

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 

 

 

   

 
 
 

Training Please see the 
Training section for 
additional details. 
Training happens in 
alignment with 
implementation for 
each portal and 
module as they are 
configured. Client will 
be trained on the 
portal or module 
ahead of the 
associated UAT 
cycle. 

Client will complete 
the eLearning training 
modules ahead of the 
instructor led training 
before UAT. 

● eLearning 
module 
support 

● Training needs 
analysis 

● Training 
facilitation 

● Training 
evaluation 

● Deliverable – 
complete 
eLearning 
modules 

● Participate in 
training 
sessions 
throughout the 
Execution 
phase 

● Provide 
feedback via 
the training 
evaluation 

Phase 3: Launch and Project Closure 

Deployment 
Planning 

Preparing to deploy to 
the Production 
environment 

● Deployment 
Plan 

● Confirm freeze 
dates and 
communicate 
to user base, if 
applicable 

● Upload Client 
provided final 
data 

● Deliverable -
Provide final 
data in the 
Thentia 
required 

Data Upload – 
Final Data 

training on 
Client’s 
specific 
configuration 
with a Thentia 
trainer before 
UAT begins. 

Thentia will complete 
the following testing 
as part of Phase 2: 

● QA testing – 
This test is to 
validate that 
portals and 
modules are 
working in the 
sandbox 
environment 
ahead of Client 
UAT. 

Thentia will upload 
Client final data into 
the production 
environment. 

13 



 

 
 

  
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
  

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
  

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

  
 

  

Final data is the full 
dataset from the 
Client system that will 
be uploaded into the 
production Thentia 
Cloud environment. 
This full dataset must 
be generated 
immediately prior to 
launch as the Client’s 
current system may 
need to be frozen for 
the transition to 
Thentia Cloud. 

format and 
template via 
the secure 
folders 

Testing Thentia will complete ● Smoke Test 
● Penny Test 

● Validate 
Production 
Environment 

the following testing 
as part of Phase 3: 

● Smoke test – 
This test 
occurs after 
Thentia loads 
the Client 
provided final 
data into the 
production 
environment. 
The QA Team 
will test the 
functionality 
and ensure all 
is functioning 
properly before 
launch. 

● Penny test – A 
penny test is 
conducted in 
the production 
environment to 
test the 
connection 
between 
Thentia Cloud 
and the 
payment 
processor. The 
transaction is 
submitted for a 
penny. 

Go Live Configured system 
will be launched to 
production. 

● Production 
Deployment 

● Confirm Go 
Live 
completion 

14 



 

 
 

  

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 
 

 

  
 
 

 

 

 

    
 

 

     

           

    

  

              

 

● Notify user 
base as 
required 

Post Go Live Thentia’s project ● Transition to ● Participate in 
Transition team will transition Support team transition 

Client to Thentia after launch to meetings 
Service Desk. production 

Project Closure Customer Success ● Project closure ● Sign-off on 
Manager becomes project closure 
the main point of 
contact for Client. 
Project is formally 
closed. 

4.4. Support and Escalations During Onboarding 

The Project Manager will attend to any questions, comments, or concerns during the project. Thentia will 

be available to help address all issues during implementation. Escalation process during implementation: 

● Escalation may be initiated by Client or by Thentia. Three business days are required between an 

escalation request and a response or resolution from the next individual in the escalation pathway. 

15 



 

 
 

 

  

    

           

  

    

  

     

   

   

           

  

 

      

4.5. Exclusions 

The following are not included in the scope of this project: 

● Updates to the Client’s public facing website or other websites not part of the Thentia Cloud product 

● Ongoing training and change management after the launch of the Thentia Cloud product 

● General information technology consulting services, cloud migration, analytics-as-a-service 

● Adding, configuring and/or changing user permissions and access rules 

● Cleaning up or correcting data, performing data mapping 

● Any item not specifically listed as in-scope 

4.6. Project Schedule 

NOTE: The Project start date will be mutually agreed upon by both Thentia and Client following receipt of 

Client payment. 

Project Phase / Deliverable Duration (weeks) 

16 



 

 
 

  

  

   

 
              

                

   

              

              

              

   

   

              

           

             

   

  

  

               

  

  

   

  

                

 

         

   

   

   

Phase 1: Planning and Initiation 2-4 

Phase 2: Execution 4-12 

Phase 3: Launch and Project Closure 4 

If there are any delays in the sign-off of the project and the project start date is delayed, the remaining 

delivery dates will be shifted in accordance with the delay. Changes to the duration of the project will be 

handled through the Change Management process. 

NOTE: The above durations are estimates. The high-level project plan will be created in Phase 1 of the 

project and reviewed with Client as part of the kick-off meeting. Once the Solution Package is signed off by 

Client, a Detailed Project Timeline will be created and approved by Client. The schedule will then be 

baselined for Phase 2 and 3 of the project. 

4.7. Client Responsibilities 

The following is a list of Client responsibilities required for this Agreement. Thentia has established the 

schedule and pricing for services by thoughtfully considering the items below. If an item identified below 

does not occur in the expected manner or within reasonable time frames, such circumstance may constitute 

a change that will require an adjustment to the schedule and/or price. 

● Procurement of software licenses as required 

● Participation of stakeholders in scheduled workshops, training sessions, etc. 

● Provision of sample and final data in CSV format and adhering to the Thentia Data Mapping 

Template 

● Execution of UAT 

● Complete or accurate details provided in the workshops 

● Timely sign-off on the Solution Package 

● Accurate data file(s) - poor data / missing information or deviation from the Thentia Data Mapping 

Template may require additional time and cost to address / resolve 

● Timely delivery of necessary information - Delays in responses, cancellation of scheduled 

meetings, User Acceptance Testing and other related feedback/information. 

● Management of 3rd party stakeholders or vendors in alignment with the project plan timelines 

● Responsibilities as outlined in section 4.3 above 

17 



 

 
 

  

           

  

              

  

      

 

      

    

  

  

  

   

  

    

    

     

  

      

      
 

 

  

    

 

     

   
 

 
 

 

 
 

  
  

   
  

4.8. Assumptions 

● Active Client participation for Solution Package and configuration workshops, as well as during 

portal-based training and UAT. 

● Resources (noted in this section 4) will be available by both Client and Thentia to adequately 

implement the product within the mutually agreed timelines. 

● All test cases will be prioritized; priority levels will be mutually agreed upon in accordance with the 

project schedule. 

● Client will follow Thentia guidelines for documenting issues during the UAT phase of the project in 

order to ensure that issues are clearly documented for resolution by the Thentia team. 

● Timely delivery of any dependent material from Client in accordance with the project schedule. 

Any delays resulting from waiting for delivery of dependent material may impact the project 

timeline and require revisions to estimates. 

● Thentia Cloud product functionality is available at the time configuration activities start. If there 

are any product features that are yet to be released that Client is dependent upon, the schedule 

will be updated to reflect this product release dependency. 

● Documentation will adhere to Thentia documentation templates and standards. 

● Data will be provided by client within agreed upon timelines and will adhere to the Thentia Data 

Mapping Template (CSV format). 

● Coding standards applied will adhere to Thentia coding standards. 

5. PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND SOFTWARE DELIVERY 
METHODOLOGY 

5.1. Communications 

The following are the types of communications provided by the Thentia Project Team: 

Communication Frequency Goal Owner Audience 

Kick-Off Meeting Once Introduce the 
Project Manager 
and 
implementation 
team. Review 
Objectives. 

Project 
Manager 

● Project 
Sponsor 

● Project Team 
● Stakeholders 

18 



 

 
 

   
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

   
  

  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

  
  

  
  

 

  

              

 

   

  

     

  

  

  

   

    

      

      

  

   

   

           

 

              

  

             

 

Status Report Weekly Review 
implementation 
status and 
discuss any 
potential issues 
or risks. 

Project 
Manager 

● 

● 

● 

Project 
Sponsor 
Project 
Team 
Stakeholders 

Project 
Evaluation 

Post-Go-Live Gather feedback 
and discuss next 
steps for 
Customer 
Success check-
ins. 

Customer 
Success 
Manager 

● 

● 
● 

Project 
Sponsor 
Project Team 
Stakeholders 

5.2. Quality Assurance 

Thentia adopts an iterative approach to ensure a high level of quality during the configuration, testing and 

final delivery of its service. 

5.2.1. Testing Approach 

Onboarding Configuration Team 

● Configures each portal and module in accordance with the signed-off Solution Package 

● Conducts unit and system tests 

● Resolves variances, as needed 

QA Team 

● The QA Team will execute test scenarios using test cases, recording the results ‘Pass or Fail’ 

● If the test fails, a ‘Bug’ ticket is created and assigned to the configuration team 

● Re-test defects, re-assigns to the project team if not resolved 

● QA continues with the testing until each test scenario has achieved a score of ‘Pass’ 

User Acceptance Testing (UAT) 

● Thentia will provide UAT guidelines to Client to guide the test cycle 

● Client will have access to a sandbox environment to perform user acceptance testing 

● Client and Thentia project team will meet daily during UAT to review Client progress and discuss 

UAT issues/findings 

● Thentia will review and adjusts the configuration as needed based on the details reviewed and 

agreed upon in the daily UAT meeting 

● Client continues testing until all test scenarios are completed and defects have been resolved or 

acceptable workarounds are in place. 

19 



 

 
 

  

               

           

               

  

             

               

  

 

             

 

                   

 

              

 

      

  

           

 

  

               

  

              

    

              

 

 

                  

  

           

            

  

5.3. Data Upload 

Data upload is the process of uploading the data provided by Client in the Thentia template and format into 

Thentia Cloud. The process involves Client cleaning of the data, assessing the data quality, and mapping 

the source to the target. Thentia will load the data into Thentia Cloud and perform verification procedures 

to ensure data has uploaded correctly. 

Thentia will provide Thentia’s Standard Data Dictionary and Data Mapping Template to Client. Client will 

complete the Data Mapping Template and send to Thentia in Thentia’s standard format (CSV) for review 

via secure folders. 

Sample data: 

● is a representation of the full data set in the Client’s current system. This robust data set will enable 

Client to confirm that data is being loaded properly into the Thentia Cloud system. 

● Sample data is not the final data set and should not be considered the final data set, in part or in 

whole. 

● Attachments and images are considered part of data for migration and must contain an identifier to 

link to the correct licensee record. 

● If sample attachments and images are available, these can be included in the sample data upload 

into the sandbox environment. 

● Production attachments and images must not be uploaded to the sandbox environment due to 

Thentia’s sensitive data protection policies. 

Final data 

● is the full data set from the Client system that will be uploaded into the production Thentia Cloud 

environment. 

● This full data set must be generated immediately prior to launch as the Client’s current system may 

need to be frozen to for the transition to Thentia Cloud. 

● Attachments and images are considered part of data for migration and must contain an identifier to 

link to the correct licensee record. 

The following is a summary of events to ensure the quality of data: 

1. Client to map all data and fill in the Thentia Data Mapping Template and send the file to Thentia 

via secure folders. 

2. The Thentia implementation team will load the data into Thentia Cloud and identify any data issues 

3. Discuss and review any data issues found with Client; Client to resolve issues and provide an 

updated data mapping file to Thentia 

20 



 

 
 

   

             

 

    

                   

            

 

    

 

      

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

   
 

 

  
  
 

  
 

 
   

  
 

 
 

  
 

   
 

  

   
  

  

 
  
  

 

 
 

   
  

 
   

 

 

  

             

   

4. Repeat steps one (1) through three (3) until all the data is accurate and loaded successfully 

5. Client will have access to the sandbox environment to conduct data testing as part of the UAT 

cycles 

Client owns the data and the accuracy of the data mapping file. No data changes will be made by Thentia. 

If the data quality is poor (i.e., data is missing values or information is incorrect) during the data upload, it 

may impact the project schedule and potentially alter or delay the launch date as well as incur additional 

costs for Client. 

The following table outlines the responsibilities for completing each activity. 

Data Activity Thentia Key Activities Client Key Activities 

Cleaning and preparing 
source data 

● Provide Thentia 
Standard Data 
Dictionary and Thentia 
Data Mapping Template 
to Client 

● Clean-up of the source 
data (i.e. duplicate email 
or home addresses) 

Data Mapping ● Answer questions as 
required to a maximum 
of 20 hours 

● Map all data in the 
Thentia Data Mapping 
file, adhering to the 
template and provide the 
file to Thentia in the 
format of Excel (CSV). 

● Define business rules, if 
applicable 

Load the Data and 
Validate 

● Load the data into the 
sandbox environment 

● Identify any data issues 

● Clean-up the data, as 
required 

● Review and update 
business rules, as 
required 

● Resolve data issues 
● Update data mapping file 

as required 

User Acceptance Testing 
(UAT) 

● Conduct data testing 
during UAT to ensure the 
data is as expected 

● Sign-off on data upload 
as part of UAT sign-off 

5.4. Training 

Just-in-time instructor led learning will take place before Client UAT begins so information learned is applied 

almost immediately. Reference materials are provided to assist users as they work in the platform. 

21 



 

 
 

               

               

              

  

           

        

       

  

  

    

           

            

 

    

               

 

 

  

   
   
   

   

    
   
  

   
  
   
   
  

   
  
  

 

When and Where: Training typically starts five to seven (5-7) weeks before the set go live date and occurs 

online, both as eLearning modules and a minimum of 1 session with a trainer before Client begins UAT in 

the sandbox environment, and a minimum of 1 session after go-live. Please note that in-person training will 

require additional fees not included in this Scope of Work. 

Training sessions with trainers are between 1-1.5 hours each. If there are additional portals or modules 

configured (i.e. inspections, schools), Thentia will provide access to eLearning modules and will assess 

learning needs for the additional portals or modules for a possible trainer led session. 

Schedule: A schedule will be completed once a trainer is assigned. Thentia will work with Client to ensure 

all users have access to the eLearning modules and that trainer sessions are offered at a time when most 

users can attend. Please note trainings will also be recorded and subsequently provided to Client. 

Additional Materials: All trainer sessions are recorded and provided to Client for continued use. Client will 

also receive early and ongoing access to eLearning modules, quick-reference guides, access to how-to 

videos, and FAQ sheets. 

Who: Thentia can deliver training to the audiences of Client’s choice. 

Agenda: The agenda will be determined based on Client needs, which can be role based (see topics below) 

if required 

Role Topics 

All ● 
● 
● 

Overview 
Login Process 
Navigation and Common Elements 

Administrator ● All topics 

Accounting ● 
● 
● 

Invoicing 
Payments 
Financial Reports 

Licensing ● 
● 
● 
● 
● 

Applications 
Renewals 
Continuing Education 
Document Requests 
Name Change Requests 

Compliance ● 
● 
● 

Online Complaints 
Case Management 
Public Notes 

22 



 

 
 

  

           

           

          

         

   

 

           

                

  

           

           

   

 

    

  

           

 

 

   

           

  

  

 

   

               

                 

 

               

              

 

         

 

5.5. Support 

The Service Desk will receive and direct services requests and triage, prioritize, and escalate Client 

requests for incidents and technical issues related to the use of the Software and address technical and 

configuration issues that may arise. If the Software does not operate in accordance with the Software 

Features, or has any other operational defect, limitation, failure or deficiency, Client’s sole and exclusive 

rights and remedies in respect of such shall be the provision of the Support Services and Thentia shall not 

be liable to Client for damages of any kind or nature. 

Thentia offers customer support via the Portal, Email, and phone. The Portal will be the main source of 

support; all items logged over phone and email will be converted to a task ticket within the Portal. The Client 

will be able to track the progress and communication around task tickets via the portal. 

Ticket Submission. Requests submitted to the Service Desk must be submitted only by the Client 

authorized representatives as communicated to Thentia by Client. Tickets may be submitted through the 

Support Portal, by email to support@Thentia.com or by phone to 1 800 961 1549. Thentia requires Clients 

to file tickets via the Support Portal for requests submitted by email, as email can be marked as a phishing 

scam at the mailing server. Phone support is only for the rare instances where the Support Portal is down, 

and any requests submitted by phone will be converted to a ticket. 

Submissions other than Incidents. All service requests may be submitted through the Service Desk. 

Service requests other than incidents, such as for training, change requests or new feature requests, shall 

be routed for response and fulfillment to an individual designated for such purpose, at additional cost. The 

incident response process and target Initial Response and Resolution Time shall not apply to such service 

requests, and Thentia may direct Client to address such requests under a separate SOW if a request 

requires the provision of Professional Services 

Portal: https://support.thentia.com 

Email: support@Thentia.com* 

Phone Number: 1 800 961 1549* 

* Notes: Phone support is in the rare occurrence of system-down situations and will be converted to a ticket. 

Additionally, we require Clients to file tickets via the portal as email can be marked as a phishing scam at 

the mailing server. 

Standard support hours are Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. EST. excluding national holidays. 

For calls, emails, and task tickets logged outside of support hours, Client can expect a response the next 

day. 

Support options within the Portal are categorized in the portal as “Bugs/Maintenance,” and ‘Support and 

Question”. An overview of each is below. 

23 

mailto:support@Thentia.com
mailto:support@Thentia.com
https://support.thentia.com


 

 
 

     

             

 

       

 

  

            

   

        

             

           

  

  

   

          

        

           

  

  

      

          

 

             

 

             

  

               

 

   

            

 

● Reporting a Bug / Maintenance Support – Maintaining functionality of the current system is free of 

charge. This is limited to troubleshooting and service restoration only. For this, select “Report a bug 

or Maintenance Support” in task ticket portal. 

● Questions, Training, Clarifications – For questions and clarifications select “Support and 

Questions.” Additional support hours for questions, training, and clarifications will be offered at the 

rates in section 2.2. 

Only the Client’s designated staff trained on Thentia software will have access to Thentia Support portal 

and be able to log a task ticket. 

Support services cover only products purchased from Thentia Platform. Thentia Platform is not responsible 

in any case when service interruption results from the failure of products not delivered by Thentia Platform. 

This includes but is not limited to network infrastructure, interfaced legacy systems, monitors and other 

display devices, accessories, etc. 

Support services does not provide direct support to end users. 

5.5.1. Service Levels 

Service Level. The target Software Availability service level for the Software production environment is 

99.9% in the Measurement Period, measured by dividing the Software Availability minus Unscheduled 

Downtime by the Software Availability. Thentia will use commercially reasonable efforts to achieve the 

target Software Availability service level, however Thentia will not be liable to Client for any failure to meet 

the service level and any such failure shall not be a breach of the Agreement. 

Maintenance Periods. Emergency maintenance may be performed at any time, as Thentia determines is 

required; provided emergency maintenance is deemed Unscheduled Downtime. During any time that 

Thentia provides notice that Scheduled Maintenance is required and agrees at the request of Client not to 

proceed, then such will be deemed a service level exception and Thentia will not be responsible for any 

failures that are the result. 

Exceptions to Service Level Failures. Thentia will not be responsible for a failure to achieve the Software 

Availability service level to the extent such failure is caused by: 

1. a breach of this Agreement by, or an act, error or omission of, Client or other person that Client is 

responsible for; 

2. an event of Force Majeure; 

3. services, systems, hardware, or software not provided by or the responsibility of Thentia or its 

subcontractors; or 

24 



 

 
 

     

            

 

     

                   

  

               

              

 

          

              

 

                 

       

           

           

  

             

          

  

  

              

 

             

          

             

 

 

      
 

 

 
 

 

   
 
 

  
   

 
  

 
 

  
 

 

4. actions taken by Thentia at the direction of Client where Thentia has notified Client that the action 

could result in a failure to meet the service level and Client has nonetheless directed Thentia to 

proceed with the applicable action. 

5.5.2. Incident Response and Resolution. 

An “incident” means any program defect, error, bug or other failure of all or part of the Software that results 

in the Software not conforming to, or performing in accordance with, the Software Features, as configured 

under this Agreement. Client’s sole and exclusive rights and remedies in respect of any incident shall be 

the provision of the Support Services as set out in this Appendix and Thentia shall not be liable to Client for 

damages. 

Incidents will be classified according to the priority level categories and descriptions set out in the table 

below and Thentia will use commercially reasonable efforts to respond and resolve all incidents within the 

target time frames set forth below. 

Response time shall be measured from the log time with the Service Desk until provision of the Initial 

Response by Thentia. “Initial Response” means Thentia’s initial communication back to Client: (a) 

acknowledging receipt of the incident ticket; and (b) which may include confirmation of the assigned severity 

level and a request for any additional information that has been identified as being required from the Client. 

For greater clarity, automatically generated emails are not considered as the Initial Response. 

Resolution Time will exclude any time Thentia is waiting on Client to provide required requested information 

or assistance. Resolution of an incident may be achieved through the provision of a workaround. 

“Resolution Time” shall be measured from the incident log time with the Service Desk and shall conclude 

when the incident is resolved. 

All incidents identified by Client must be communicated by Client to the Service Desk via the Thentia Cloud 

portal. 

Client Responsible. Client will at the request of Thentia provide Thentia with all available information 

concerning reported incidents, including the conditions under which such incident occurred and will 

otherwise reasonably cooperate with Thentia at the request of Thentia in connection with Thentia’s 

diagnosis and resolution of incidents. 

Incident Priority Service Impact Target Initial 
Response 
Time 

Target 
Resolution 
Time 

Priority 1 – Critical 
Critical Impact / 
System Down 

Major failure impacting the entire 
system or multiple modules of the 
system. This may include: 

● Network errors 

1 hour, during 
Support Hours 

1 - 4 hours, 
during Support 
Hours 

25 



 

 
 

   
  

    
 

 
 
  

  

 
  

  
 

  
  

  
   

 
   

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

   

    

 
 

 
  

 

 

  
 

   
 

  
  

   

 
 

    

 
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
           

   

              

    

               

             

 

● Database errors 
● Software errors 

Priority 2 – High 
Critical system 
issue actively 
impacting many 
customers’ ability to 
use the product. 

Major piece of functionality of the 2 hours, during 
Support Hours 

2 - 24 hours 
system not working as designed 
(portals, workbench): 

● A major functionality is 
broken or misbehaving. 

● Applicants are unable to 
register. 

● Active Registrants are 
unable to renew. 

● Unable to generate 
invoices 

● Payment processing not 
working. 

● Cannot log in, no 
passwords accepted. 

Priority 3 – Medium 
Minor issues 
requesting action 
but not impacting 
the customer’s 
ability to use the 
product. 

The issue is impacting the 
Authorized Users of the product 
somewhat and should be fixed 
when possible. 

● System is slow · 
Reporting problems 

● Problems with search 
functionality 

● Other minor bugs 

1 business day 5-10 business 
days 

Priority 4 – Low 
Cosmetic issues 
and minor bugs not 
impacting the 
customer’s ability to 
use the product. 

There is no impact to the system, 1 business day 5-10 business 
days however this issue should be 

fixed whenever possible 
● Text/spelling error 
● Other minor cosmetic 

issues 
● Request for information 

and direction. 

“Recovery Point Objective” or “RPO” means the maximum period of time in which Client Data 

transactions will be lost from the Software following a disaster.  RPO is 2 hours. 

“Recovery Time Objective” or “RTO” means the period of time within the Software will be restored at 

Thentia’s disaster recover site after a disaster.  RTO is 2 hours. 

Escalation. Client may escalate incidents that are not responded to or resolved within the target timeframes 

or other service requests or any other concern as set out in this subsection as illustrated in the diagram 

below. 

26 



 

 
 

 

      
       

  

   
        

     
     

 

    
     

        
       

       
     

 

     
       

   

  

             

              

            

               

    

            

              

 

    

  

   

   

   

 

Escalation contact information will be provided to 
Client. Escalation contacts are subject to change 
on notice to Client. 

Escalations can be completed either directly within 
the Service Desk or via e-mail to the designated 
contact. All initial problems are managed and 
responded to by an assigned Thentia 
representative. 

Thentia will work diligently to resolve any 
outstanding requests or issues presented by Client. 
If an individual is not able to resolve or does not 
have the authority to resolve, the issue can be 
escalated to the next individual in the escalation 
pathway. Escalation may be initiated by Client or 
by Thentia. 

One business day is required between an 
escalation request and a response or resolution 
from the next individual in the escalation pathway. 

5.6. Change Management 

During the ongoing engagement either Thentia or Client, may request in writing additions, deletions, or 

modifications to the services described in this SOW (each a “Change”) by submitting a written change 

request (“Change Request” or “CR”) to the other party that describes the specific changes that are being 

requested and the reason for the change request. Thentia shall have no obligation to commence work in 

connection with any Change until the Change is agreed upon in a written “Change Request” signed by the 

designated Representatives from both parties, entered into in accordance with the “Change Management 

Process” below. Any signed Change Request will be deemed to amend the SOW to reflect the changes 

set out in such executed Change Request. 

Thentia Representative Client Representative 

Name: Alex Armanious 

Email Contact: alex@thentia.com 

Name: Stephanie McGee 

Email Contact: director@fb.nv.gov 

Additional Notes: 

27 



 

 
 

           

           

  

    

               

 

     

              

            

 

           

 

            

            

 

   

           

         

 

                

              

 

          

             

             

 

   

  

  

  

▪ Change Requests can include any new feature, integration, custom report, or request that is not 

specifically provided as a product feature or as an implementation deliverable in this SOW. Change 

Requests can also include schedule and budget changes. 

▪ Change Requests and New Feature Requests require a minimum of four (4) hours of total time, to 

ensure several task tickets can be grouped together prior to approving a change request that is 

billable. 

▪ Only authorized users can request a Change Request or Feature Request. 

▪ The Change Management Process is designed to ensure change details are clearly understood 

and communicated to both the Thentia and Client team. Additionally, the outcome of the process 

is to produce a course of action that both teams sign-off on. 

▪ Thentia will use commercially reasonable efforts to minimize the additional cost and time 

associated with a change. 

▪ The Client may not unreasonably withhold its consent to a CR initiated by Thentia or withhold its 

consent to a Change necessitated due to a delay or failure of Client to perform its obligations under 

the SOW 

The Change Management Process is as follows: 

1. Pre-launch, a Change Request (CR) is initiated by the Client or Thentia. Post launch, CRs will be 

discussed during Quarterly Business Review (“QBR”) sessions. The Customer Success Manager 

will document and follow up with the customer post QBR session. 

2. Thentia will (a) prepare a draft CR; (b) submit the draft CR to Client for approval. The CR provides 

an estimate of the time and cost associated with the CR and an analysis of the impact of the 

change. 

3. Within three (3) consecutive business days following its receipt of the CR, the Client will either 

indicate acceptance of the proposed Change by signing the CR or advise Thentia not to perform 

the Change. In the absence of Client’s acceptance or rejection within the specified time period, 

Thentia will not perform the proposed Change. 

5.7. Change Request Rates 

Change Requests will be documented for any scope changes. This includes enhancements to existing 

capabilities and requests for new capabilities, if necessary. 

Please see rates and terms noted above at subsection 2.2. 

28 



 

 
 

   

             

             

            

   

     

           

  

5.8. Customer Success 

Customer success is Thentia’s top priority. Client’s Customer Success Manager will be a stakeholder in 

Client implementation project to provide valuable knowledge to the implementation team around business 

goals that were outlined during the sales cycles. The transition from sales to implementation, and then 

implementation to customer support, will be assisted by the Customer Success Manager. 

On at least a monthly basis, Client will receive communications from its Customer Success Manager. 

The Customer Success Manager will set up a series of recurring meetings, including Quarterly Business 

Reviews to review Client’s business goals for the upcoming period. 

29 



State of Nevada 
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 Reno, NV 89509 
Phone (775) 825-5535  * Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Executive Director Report – February 7, 2024 

 

 

     
 
 

  
    

        
       

       
     

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
   
  
  
  
  
  
  
   
  

 
 

  
   
   
   
   
  
   

 
 

 
   

  
 
 

  
         

  
    

 
 

      
     

 
 

  
     

Licensing and Renewals
Renewal notices were sent on November 1, 2023, to 122 facilities and 445 individuals. Between November 1 and the date 
of this report, all facilities have been renewed, and 383 individuals. As of today, there are 62 licenses that have not been 
renewed, inactivated, or surrendered, specifically 6 embalmers, 12 funeral directors, and 44 funeral arrangers. All 
licenses expired on December 31, 2023. Individuals may still renew with a late fee but may not act under the license as of 
January 1, 2024. Renewals close on March 1. 

Since the last meeting, I approved the following individual licenses: 

Apprentice Embalmer 
AE2305 Young, Durrell 

Funeral Arrangers 
FA327 Baker, Justin 
FA332 Castleberry, Anastasia 
FA330 Davis, Levon 
FA326 Flamm, Faustine 
FA333 Robinson, Kyra 
FA325 Rosado, Monique 
FA328 Sepulveda, Aranza 
FA329 Varney, Johnny 
FA331 Holderman, Seth 

Funeral Directors 
FD1012 Buentello, Robert 
FD1011 Curnow. Brian 
FD1015 Gallegos, Amelia 
FD1013 Jones, Kelsa 
FD1010 Leonard, Robin 
FD1017 Lozano Millan, Maria 
FD1016 St. John, Kaeloni 

Inspections
Dr. Fazzino is continuing to conduct regular unannounced inspections. He traveled to Las Vegas in November and 
January to inspect a number of facilities, in addition to completing inspections in Carson City, Douglas County, and 
Washoe County. 

Complaints and Inquiries 
Since the last meeting, we logged 6 complaints and received numerous inquiries regarding activities in the industry.  Many 
inquiries can be resolved prior to a complaint but are important to note. A common underpinning of complaints and 
inquiries is failure to timely communicate with family members/loved ones. 

Many inquiries and complaints deal with delay in obtaining a death certificate and/or final disposition.  Upon speaking with 
the Office of Vital Records and the Southern Nevada Health District’s Vital Statistics, a main cause of delay is not timely 
assigning a certifier for the manner and cause of death.  Certifier must be timely assigned by the facility upon creating the 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


    
     

 
      

        
 
 

 
   

  
 

     
   

    
    

   
 
 

 
       

    
   

  
 

     
   

   
   

 
   

    
  

 
 

  
     

     
   

 
     

      
 
 

 
      

     
    

 
    

 
 

    
  

    
 

      
   

 
     

  

record to ensure that the medical professional can provide the required information regarding the manner and cause of 
death and the record can be considered by the Office of Vital Records within 72 hours. While there are cases that cannot 
be certified within 72 hours, the facility needs to make every effort to assign a certifier upon creation of the electronic 
death record. While the current system is electronic, it remains the responsibility of the funeral director to present the 
certificate of death to the local registrar within 72 hours after the occurrence or discovery of the death. (NRS 440.490) 

FTC Secret Shopper Calls
In 2023, the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) conducted an undercover phone sweep, calling more than 250 funeral 
homes across the country for pricing information.  Of those, 39 were found to have violated the Funeral Rule.  The 
Funeral Rule requires facilities to disclose prices and other information to individuals arranging funerals, including 
providing price information over the phone. Most findings from the sweep were that funeral homes either refused to 
answer pricing questions or provided inconsistent pricing for identical services.  One funeral home misstated the legal 
requirements for embalming, and one provided a list of package prices rather than a General Price List. At the 
conclusion of the sweep, the FTC sent letters to each of the 39 facilities. While fines were not imposed in this round, the 
FTC can fine up to $51,744 per violation of the Funeral Rule. 

Required Reports 
• Report of Occupational Licensing Boards was uploaded to the Legislative Counsel Bureau on January 17, 2024. 

Pursuant to NRS 622.100, this Board is required to report licensing totals, disciplinary actions, license denials, 
and license disqualifications based on criminal history.  The report is available at: Nevada Legislative Counsel 
Bureau Reports of Occupational Licensing Boards (state.nv.us) 

• State Professional and Occupational Licensing Report (SPOLR): This report was provided to the State Controllers 
Office on January 17, 2024.  This report consists of the names, addresses, Social Security Numbers or Employer 
Identification Numbers for all individuals and facilities that have renewed in the six months prior to the upload of 
the report.  The report is used by the State Controller to assist with the collection of debts owed to the State. 

• Consultant Report: This report is required by NRS 333.705(7).  Each board and commission must submit to the 
Interim Finance Committed the name, purpose, length of time, and amount paid to each consultant used by the 
board.  This report was provided to the Legislative Council Bureau on January 17, 2024. 

Conferences/Events/Education 
• The International Conference Annual Meeting: Kim Kandaras and I registered and will represent the Board at this 

meeting.  I will be out of the office from February 26 through March 1, 2024, to attend this meeting. 
• Cremation Association of North America (CANA): Participated in CANA’s crematory operator certification course 

and reviewed the proposed natural organic reduction course material. 
• Council on Licensure, Enforcement and Regulation (CLEAR) registered as a member and for the National 

Certified Investigator and Inspector Basic Training in March (online). 

Legislative Update 
• AB431 Government Reorg: The Department of Business & Industry presented an overview of the agency to the 

Joint Interim Standing Committee on Commerce and Labor on January 18, 2024. In this presentation, the 
Director provided an overview of the Office of Nevada Boards, Commissions and Council Standards, including an 
organizational chart.  He testified that some boards may be consolidated and that he is looking to other states for 
best practices.  On February 6, 2024, Director Sanchez announced that the Department hired Nikki Haag to 
oversee this office. 

• AB289 Natural Organic Reduction: The Legislative Council Bureau has returned the draft regulations. I will 
schedule a hearing at the next Board meeting.  In the afternoon of February 14, I have an interview with Channel 
4 regarding the natural organic reduction legislation. 

• AB503 Fingerprinting for a Criminal History Report: As of today, the enacted language remains pending approval 
by the FBI. 

As always, thank you for your service on the Board. Your time an input on regulatory matters is valuable, and I appreciate 
your support. 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/OL/A/
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/OL/A/

	Agenda
	3.A. Draft Meeting Minutes 11.15.2023
	3.B.1. Beverly's EST Application
	3.B.2. Gateway to the Valley DBA Camino al Cielo EST Application
	3.B.3. County Funeral Services CRE Application
	3.B.4. MFD Request Carlen Thomas FD861, Cremation Society of Nevada-Capitol City EST124 
	3.B.5. MFD Request Kenneth Bowman FD806,  Cremation Society of Nevada - Affinity EST123
	3.B.6. MFD Request Kenneth Bowman FD806, Cremation Society of Nevada - John Sparks EST125
	3.B.7. MFD Request Kenneth Bowman FD806, Cremation Society fo Nevada - Northern Nevada EST126
	3.B.8. MFD Request Christopher Walters FD64, Desert Memorial EST133
	3.B.9. MFD Request Scott Shade FD1014, Desert Memorial EST133
	3.B.10. MFD Request Chris Grant FD920, Kraft Sussman EST130
	3.B.11. MFD Request Raymond Giddens FD923, La Eternidad EST134
	3.B.12. MFD Request Christopher Walters FD64, Sunrise Cremation DC101L
	3.B.13. MFD Request Scott Shade FD1014, Sunrise Cremation DC101L
	3.B.14. MFD Request Chris Grant FD920, Vegas Valley Cremation, DC98L
	3.B.15. MFD Request Carlen Thomas FD861, Walton's Funerals & Cremations EST117
	3.B.16. MFD Request Carlen Thomas FD861, Walton's Chapel of the Valley EST118
	3.B.17. MFD Request Blake Howe FD622, Walton's Sparks
	3.B.18. MFD Request Margarita Rojas FD946, Tulip Cremations DC100L
	4. Embalmer License Renewal Greg Marr EMB905
	4. Embalmer License Application Greg Marr
	5. CEU Request National Institute of Funeral Service
	6. CEU Request ICFSEB The Conference Annual Meeting
	7. Financial Statements and Reg Fees
	8. Licensing Software Overview and SOW
	9. Executive Director Report



